Public Document Pack

A Meeting of the OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE will be held virtually on
WEDNESDAY 24 FEBRUARY 2021 AT 7.00 PM

Susan Parsonage
Chief Executive
Published on 16 February 2021
Note: The Council has made arrangements under the Coronavirus Act 2020
to hold this meeting virtually via Microsoft Teams. The meeting may be
viewed live using the following link: https://youtu.be/LYePUp_8Eww
The role of Overview and Scrutiny is to provide independent “critical friend”
challenge and to work with the Council’s Executive and other public service
providers for the benefit of the public. The Committee considers submissions
from a range of sources and reaches conclusions based on the weight of
evidence – not on party political grounds.
This meeting may be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s website.
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this
meeting. The use of these images or recordings is not under the Council’s
control.

Our Vision
A great place to live, learn, work and grow and a great place to do business

Enriching Lives







Champion outstanding education and enable our children and young people to achieve their full
potential, regardless of their background.
Support our residents to lead happy, healthy lives and provide access to good leisure facilities to
complement an active lifestyle.
Engage and involve our communities through arts and culture and create a sense of identity which
people feel part of.
Support growth in our local economy and help to build business.
Safe, Strong, Communities
Protect and safeguard our children, young and vulnerable people.
Offer quality care and support, at the right time, to prevent the need for long term care.
Nurture communities and help them to thrive.
Ensure our borough and communities remain safe for all.






Do all we can to become carbon neutral and sustainable for the future.
Protect our borough, keep it clean and enhance our green areas.
Reduce our waste, improve biodiversity and increase recycling.
Connect our parks and open spaces with green cycleways.




Offer quality, affordable, sustainable homes fit for the future.
Build our fair share of housing with the right infrastructure to support and enable our borough to
grow.
Protect our unique places and preserve our natural environment.
Help with your housing needs and support people to live independently in their own homes.





A Clean and Green Borough

Right Homes, Right Places




Keeping the Borough Moving





Maintain and improve our roads, footpaths and cycleways.
Tackle traffic congestion, minimise delays and disruptions.
Enable safe and sustainable travel around the borough with good transport infrastructure.
Promote healthy alternative travel options and support our partners to offer affordable, accessible
public transport with good network links.

Changing the Way We Work for You





Be relentlessly customer focussed.
Work with our partners to provide efficient, effective, joined up services which are focussed around
you.
Communicate better with you, owning issues, updating on progress and responding appropriately
as well as promoting what is happening in our Borough.
Drive innovative digital ways of working that will connect our communities, businesses and
customers to our services in a way that suits their needs.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Councillors
Pauline Helliar-Symons
(Chairman)
Paul Fishwick
Emma Hobbs
Ken Miall
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey

Alison Swaddle (ViceChairman)
Jim Frewin
Sarah Kerr
Andrew Mickleburgh

Andy Croy

Substitutes
Jenny Cheng
Carl Doran
Chris Bowring
Graham Howe
Clive Jones

Shirley Boyt
Lindsay Ferris
Laura Blumenthal
Barrie Patman

Prue Bray
Simon Weeks
Michael Firmager
Stephen Conway

ITEM
NO.

WARD

Guy Grandison
Abdul Loyes
Malcolm Richards

SUBJECT

70.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

71.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 20
January 2021.

72.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest.

73.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any public questions. A period of 30
minutes will be allowed for members of the public to
ask questions submitted under notice. The Council
welcomes questions from members of the public about
the work of this Committee.

PAGE
NO.

5-8

Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can
relate to general issues concerned with the work of the
Committee or an item which is on the Agenda for this
meeting. For full details of the procedure for
submitting questions please contact the Democratic
Services Section on the numbers given below or go to
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions
74.
75.

MEMBER QUESTION TIME
To answer any Member questions.
None Specific

QUARTER 3 2020/21 PERFORMANCE REPORT
To consider the Quarter 3 2020/21 Performance
Management Report.

9 - 44

76.

None Specific

IMPROVING O&S WORK PROGRAMMING,
MONITORING AND REPORTING
To consider a report with proposals to improve horizon
scanning, the development of work programmes and
tracking recommendations.

45 - 52

77.

None Specific

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORTS
2020/21
To approve the 2020/21 Overview and Scrutiny Annual
Reports for submission to the Council meeting in
March 2021.

53 - 70

78.

None Specific

CONSIDERATION OF THE CURRENT EXECUTIVE
AND INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION
FORWARD PROGRAMMES
To consider the current published version of the
Executive Forward Programme and the Individual
Executive Member Decision Forward Programme.

71 - 80

79.

None Specific

COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMMES
To discuss the work programme of the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Committee and Overview and
Scrutiny Committees.

81 - 86

80.

None Specific

CLIMATE EMERGENCY TASK AND FINISH GROUP
To consider an update from the Chairman on the Task
and Finish Group’s work programme for 2021.

81.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
To note that, due to the election purdah, the next
meeting of the Committee will be held on Tuesday 23
March 2021, commencing at 7pm.

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent
A Supplementary Agenda will be issued by the Chief Executive if there are any
other items to consider under this heading.

Neil Carr
Tel
Email
Postal Address

CONTACT OFFICER
Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist
0118 974 6058
neil.carr@wokingham.gov.uk
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN

Agenda Item 71.
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
HELD ON 20 JANUARY 2021 FROM 7.00 PM TO 8.25 PM
Committee Members Present
Councillors: Pauline Helliar-Symons (Chairman), Alison Swaddle (Vice-Chairman),
Andy Croy, Paul Fishwick, Jim Frewin, Guy Grandison, Emma Hobbs, Sarah Kerr,
Abdul Loyes, Ken Miall, Andrew Mickleburgh, Malcolm Richards and Rachelle ShepherdDuBey
Officers Present
Neil Carr, Democratic and Electoral Services Specialist
62.
APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence.
63.
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 25 November 2020 were confirmed
as a correct record and would be signed by the Chairman at a later date.
64.
DECLARATION OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
65.
PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
There were no public questions.
66.
MEMBER QUESTION TIME
There were no Member questions.
67.
WBC RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC
The Committee considered a report, set out at Agenda pages 15 to 46, which referred to
the Committee’s report: WBC Response to the Covid-19 pandemic.
The Committee had agreed the 10 recommendations in the report on the pandemic at its
meeting on 25 November 2020. The final report brought together the results of a number
of Scrutiny reviews undertaken by the four Overview and Scrutiny Committees.
The report would be considered by the Executive at its meeting on 25 February 2021. The
Executive would also consider a report setting out the officer response to the
recommendations in the O&S report.
The Committee was requested to consider the process for developing the O&S report on
the pandemic and any learning points. It was also asked to consider any ongoing issues
for inclusion in the 2021/22 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes (considered later on
the Agenda).
In the ensuing discussion, the following points were raised:
The recommendations in the report did not include reference to the importance of building
on the improved levels of partnership working arising out of the pandemic. It was
confirmed that the Committee’s report had been submitted and could not be amended.

5

However, it was possible to ask the Executive to consider further points alongside the
recommendations in the report.
A number of positive operational issues had arisen during the pandemic, including the
move to home working, positive support to care homes and rough sleepers and new
methods of service delivery. It was suggested that this point also be referred to the
Executive for consideration.
Could the report to the Executive include an update on the latest developments relating to
the Council’s response to the pandemic?
Could the report to the Executive be re-titled: WBC “initial” response to the pandemic?
It was suggested that two items be considered for inclusion in the 2021/22 Work
Programme:


Opportunities arising out of the “green recovery” from the pandemic;



The impact of the pandemic on the Council’s structures and ways of working – the new
normal.

The report on the pandemic highlighted the impact on female employment. It was
suggested that the impact of the current lockdown on nurseries be highlighted in that Early
Years settings were funded based on the number of children actually attending rather than
the number of children registered. It was suggested that this issue be raised at the
Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
It was proposed by Sarah Kerr and seconded by Guy Grandison that:


the Executive ensures that the improved partnership working between the Council and
external organisations not only continues, but is further developed.



the Executive ensures that the lessons learnt from operationally managing the
pandemic are not only continued, but are further developed and supported.

On being put to the vote, the proposal was approved.
RESOLVED That:
1) the final version of the O&S report on the WBC response to the pandemic be noted;
2) in addition to the recommendations in the report, the Chairman write to the Leader of
the Council requesting that the Executive consider the following points:
 that the improved partnership working between the Council and external
organisations not only continues, but is further developed;
 that the lessons learnt from operationally managing the pandemic are not only
continued, but are further developed and supported.
3) the issue of funding for early years settings during the current lockdown be considered
at the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee;
4) the following items be added to the Committee’s Work Programme:

6

 Opportunities arising out of the “green recovery” from the pandemic;
 The impact of the pandemic on the Council’s structures and ways of working – the
new normal.
68.
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMMES FOR 2021/22
The Committee considered a report, set out at Agenda pages 47 to 54, which set out
proposals to develop the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes for 2021/22.
The report stated that effective work programming was a Member-led process aimed at
shortlisting and prioritising issues of community concern together with issues arising out of
the Council Vision and Corporate Delivery Plan and major policy or service changes. It
aimed to:





reflect local needs and concerns;
prioritise topics for scrutiny which had the most impact or benefit;
involve local residents and stakeholders;
be flexible enough to respond to new or urgent issues.

The report stated that, in order to generate ideas and involvement from local residents,
community groups and stakeholders, the Council’s website and social media would be
used to publicise the development of the Work Programmes. In considering potential
issues for review, Members would take into account the previously agreed selection
criteria:








Whether the issue was of local, and preferably current, concern;
Whether undertaking the review can be linked to the Council’s Vision, priorities and
underpinning principles or would help achieve these;
Whether the topic was already being reviewed elsewhere within the Council (e.g. as
part of the Continuous Improvement Programme);
Was the topic one that was capable of being influenced by one of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committees;
Was the topic of manageable scope – not too wide-ranging and yet of sufficient size to
warrant a Scrutiny review;
Whether sufficient resources were available to support the Scrutiny review;
If a review was warranted, should it have a high, medium or low priority?

The report suggested that potential items for inclusion in the 2021/22 Work Programmes
be submitted to the Committee’s meeting in March 2021 for consideration and
prioritisation.
In the ensuing discussion, Members raised the following points:
Once the Overview and Scrutiny Committees have made recommendations, what is the
process for reporting back on implementation and progress?
How does the Committee carry out “horizon scanning” to identify potential items for future
Scrutiny? It was suggested that a report on this issue be considered at the next meeting.

7

It was suggested that an in-depth review be carried out into the Council’s engagement with
the community and voluntary sectors, including the development of the co-produced antipoverty strategy.
Members suggested potential items for inclusion in the 2021/22 Work Programme, as
follows:





Scrutiny of the Council’s Standards Committee;
Improving communications with residents and community groups;
Changes to the Council’s systems and working environment;
Changes to the Planning system.

RESOLVED That:
1) Members submit ideas for inclusion in the 2021/22 Work Programmes to Democratic
Services;
2) the process for public consultation on the 2021/22 Work Programmes, set out in the
report, be approved;
3) the final 2021/22 Work Programmes be agreed at the meeting of the Committee in
March 2021;
4) each Overview and Scrutiny Committee carry out one or more detailed Scrutiny
reviews during 2021/22;
5) that a report be submitted to the next meeting with suggestions to improve horizon
scanning and the identification of future pre-decision Scrutiny items.
69.

CONSIDERATION OF THE CURRENT EXECUTIVE AND IEMD FORWARD
PROGRAMMES
The Committee considered a copy of the Executive Forward Programme and Individual
Executive Member Decision Forward Programme, as set out on Agenda pages 55 to 62.
RESOLVED: That the Forward Programmes be noted.
70.
COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMMES
The Committee considered its forward Work Programme for 2020/21 and that of the
Overview and Scrutiny Committees, as set out on Agenda pages 63 to 72.
Alison Swaddle reported that the Climate Emergency Task and Finish Group would be
meeting on 27 January 2021. It was suggested that relevant Members be invited to join the
Task and Finish Group.
Sarah Kerr, Paul Fishwick, Rachelle Shepherd-Dubey and Jim Frewin referred to the
emerging WBC Equality Plan and expressed concern that the plan would not be subject to
Scrutiny until after its approval by the Executive.
RESOLVED: That the forward Work Programmes for 2020/21 be noted.

8

Agenda Item 75.
TITLE

Quarter 3 2020/21 Performance Report

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee on 24
February 2021

WARD

(All Wards);

LEAD OFFICER

Director, Communities, Insight and Change - Keeley
Clements

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
This report provides accountability and transparency against the Council’s Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs) for service areas and provision of these to our Customers.

RECOMMENDATION
To endorse the Council’s Q3 Performance Monitoring Report for the period covering Oct – Dec
2020 performance.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
The Council is now at the end of quarter three of the current reporting year 20/21 having faced an
unprecedented year of challenges arising from the pandemic. Through all three reporting quarters
the Council has been continuously responding to changes caused by the waves of the pandemic,
lockdown restrictions and social distancing rules to ensure that it is doing all it can to support
vulnerable residents and businesses, whilst seeking to maintain critical and universal services.
To enable this tailored response, a formal staff redeployment programme was established which,
at its peak, redeployed 107 staff members (equating to approximately 10% of our total employees)
to business critical areas. Covid-19 regulations also forced the closure of some of our premises
such as leisure centres and libraries. This has undoubtably had an impact upon performance of
some of the KPI’s over the course of the reporting year.
Q3 started with some services able to resume, albeit at reduced capacity due to social distancing
measures (e.g. leisure centres, recycling centres and some libraries). The borough was then
affected by the second national lockdown in November, until the tier system was re-introduced
which quickly saw the council move from Tier 3 into Tier 4 restrictions in December which forced
the closure again of some services.
The financial pressure arising from the pandemic is now becoming clearer and has been included
in the Revenue Budget Monitoring position for Q3. The situation is being closely monitored. Despite
significant challenges, the current revenue forecast is £119,000 overspend (including Covid-19).
Council Tax collection remains on track with collection rates as expected for this time of year.
Despite the significant impacts of Covid-19 and the response and recovery efforts of the Council,
performance at the end of Q3 has remained positive across the majority of our KPIs; with most
achieving the assigned targets for the year to date and many showing improvements compared to
Q2. Of particular note are the KPI’s relating to Adult Social Care, despite significant challenges
arising from the pandemic all staff have worked tirelessly to provide the highest possible standard
of support to vulnerable residents, resulting in KPI performance in the majority of indicators being
maintained or improved which is commendable.

9










61% (39) are on track for delivery and
therefore Green
16% (10) are reported as Amber since
performance is off-target
17% (11) are Red since the target is not being
achieved in Q3.

Six KPIs have achieved an improved RAG rating (two from Amber to Green and four from Red
to Green)
Seven KPIs have deteriorated in RAG rating (two from Amber to Red, three from Green to Red
and two from Green to Amber). Detailed reasons for this have been analysed and, where
necessary, actions have been identified to address this.
Of the six KPIs which have remained Red, two are showing improved performance and four
have deteriorated.

Further details of all KPIs are listed in Appendix A which accompanies this report.

Background/Context
 The Council’s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) measure how well each service is delivering
against its current objectives.
 This performance report and appendices covers Q3 2020/21 October, November,
December.
 There are 67 KPIs (three of which are in development) and details of the KPIs, found in
Appendix A, includes year on year trends where available.
 Each KPI is intended to be a SMART target (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic and
Timely), which takes into account historic trend information and benchmarking to compare
Wokingham Borough performance with national trends.
 KPIs are assigned a RAG status (Red, Amber, Green) to indicate whether performance is on
target (Green), close to target (Amber) or missing the target (Red).
Indicators are assigned to a Director and Lead Executive Member. The commentary provides
further information related to that indicator and aims to explain the data, any variances against
target and actions being taken to address.
KPIs in Development
The following three KPIs are in development.
 Alternative measure of Delayed Transfers of Care – A Rapid Community Discharge service
dashboard has now been developed for services across West Berkshire. RBH and BHFT
committed to providing the relevant data in early Q4 and Adult Social Care is currently awaiting
this.
 Channel shift - % Digital transactions
 Staff engagement survey – to develop more frequent reporting
Data for these is either coming from multiple sources and analysis is being carried out to ensure
these proposed metrics will be reliable indicators, or they relate to programmes and projects
where action plans and targets are yet to be finalised. An update will be provided to Committee
once these new indicators are finalised.

10

Analysis of Performance
Across the Council, 7 indicators have deteriorated in RAG rating, 6 have remained Red and 6
have improved in RAG rating between Q2 and Q3. The split is as follows;
3 indicators have moved from Green to Red
2 indicator has moved from Amber to Red
6 indicators have remained Red
2 indicators have moved from Green to Amber
0 indicators have moved from Red to Amber
2 indicators have moved from Amber to Green
4 indicators have moved from Red to Green
This is a summary of the movement of KPI’s and key areas to note.
3 indicators moved from Green to Red in Q3. The impacts of the pandemic continues to affect
homeless preventions (KPI RA5a). Due to the current national lockdown, visits to properties are
restricted and few affordable properties are available. Whilst recycling rates often decline during
Q3 and Q4 each year due to low tonnages collected from garden waste, performance of KPI
PG19 is below target due to the continued impact of wet paper on recycling. For KPI CS1, there
has been a surge in numbers of children becoming subject to a Child Protection Plan, for a second
or subsequent time, in Q3. This is the highest number of children on Child Protection Plans since
2017.
2 KPIs moved from Green to Amber in Q3. All crime for Q3 (KPI CIC1) is in line with expected
levels. There has been an increase in demand in Q3 for child protection visits (KPI CS2). Visit
timeliness has remained largely consistent and performance has been better in previous quarters
when fewer visits were required.
2 KPIs moved from Amber to Red in Q3. As in previous quarters this year, due to pandemic
pressures, patients in hospital are being discharged with a higher level of illness than would be
the case under normal circumstances. Those discharged, but deemed unfit by MDT to begin
reablement immediately, are recorded as returned to hospital. This, coupled with the unfortunate
death of four service users on the START/reablement pathway has negatively impacted
performance for KPI AS3.
A rise in complaints were received in Q3; one third of which related to housing maintenance. Over
the winter period there has been a rise in demand for repairs, compounded by Covid-19
restrictions and hence contractors have not been able to complete as many maintenance calls
per day. This has led to customer dissatisfaction and an increase in complaints received this
quarter.
During Quarter 1 the financial impact of Covid-19, and the level of central government financial
support, was uncertain. The level of spend was tracked, monitored closely and reported to central
government. Now that the financial impacts of Covid-19 are better understood, and there is more
clarity around the level of central government financial support, Covid-19 spend is integrated into
the full revenue budget position. The level of spend will continue to be tracked, monitored closely
and reported to central government. The Q3 revenue budget is forecasting an improved position
despite the challenges caused by Covid-19.
Leisure centre attendance (KPI RA3) and participation in activities (KPI RA4) remain below target
due to social distancing restrictions which were imposed when centres could reopen in Q3. Tier
4, and subsequently lockdown, restrictions resulted in the closure of all leisure centres from
December.
Visits to Libraries remain less than last year. Some libraries were able to reopen, albeit at reduced
capacity due to social distancing restrictions. However the Tier 4 restrictions in December 2020

11

resulted in closures again of all libraries. Despite this, the digital offer has been expanded and
has seen a substantial increased take up rate during the last two quarters.
The Adult Services KPIs have been impacted by increase in workload due to the pandemic as
well as resourcing implications arising from redeployed staff returning to their substantive posts
and staff taking annual leave that had been delayed due to the first wave of the pandemic. Adult
Social Care has maintained, and in many areas improved, its performance and delivery despite
the significant challenges and increased demand the service has faced due to Covid-19.
AS4 has moved from Red to Green in Q3 with 89% of safeguarding concerns being completed
within 2 working days. Following a bottle-neck into the safeguarding front-door last quarter, a
stabilisation plan was put in place which has successfully increased performance in Q3.
Even with the inclusion of self-funders and CHC funders, AS9 has seen a return to normal
admission levels and hence has moved from Red to Green in Q3; with the target rate being
achieved for the first time since the pandemic struck.
KPI RA2 has remained green but has improved since Q2, the occupancy rate of WBC owned
regeneration units has risen from 87% to 90% in Q2, which equates to nearly £2m committed
income from these lettings at Peach Place and Elms Field. This is a positive result in what has
and continues to be a very difficult market.

The three indicators that have deteriorated from Green to Red are:
CS1: Percentage of children who became subject to a Child Target 21% or less
Protection Plan for a second or subsequent time within 24
months.
Q1 20/21 4% Green
Q2 20/21 0% Green
Rationale: CSC places great emphasis on preventing the need for Q3 20/21 25% Red
children to return to a Protection Plan - as can be seen in
performance across previous quarters. Q3 2019/20 also saw a surge
in numbers, and Q3 2020/21 has seen the highest number of children
on Protection Plans since 2017.
Action to resolve: The service does not plan to take short-term,
impulsive action on the basis of the figures this quarter. Although Q3
has seen a surge, when 2020/21 is considered cumulatively, the rate
for subsequent Child Protection Plans is 13% - well below the target
for the year.
RA5a: Percentage of successful homeless preventions

Target 50% or more

Rationale:Performance has fallen in Q3 primarily due to the current Q1 20/21 67% Green
national lockdown; restricting visits to properties and with fewer Q2 20/21 67% Green
affordable properties becoming available. The majority of closed Q3 20/21 34% Red
cases were due to residents withdrawing their application for
assistance, no further contact being possible, applicants were found
not to be homeless or were referred to another local authority.
Action to resolve: The team continue to work closely with residents,
landlords and families to try to resolve any tenancy-related issues to
avoid eviction proceedings and to prevent homelessness wherever
possible.

12

PG19: Percentage of household waste reused, recycled and Target 52% or more
composted
Q1 20/21 53% Green
Rationale: Performance is below target due to the continued impact Q2 20/21 52% Green
of wet paper on recycling. Recycling rates often decline during Q3
Q3 20/21 46% Red
and Q4 each year due to low tonnages collected from garden
waste.

The two indicators that have deteriorated from Amber to Red are:
AS3: People aged 65+ who received reablement from the START Target 89% or more
team following discharge from hospital, and remained at home
91 days later.
Q1 20/21 87% Amber
Q2 20/21 87% Amber
Rationale: As in previous quarters this year, due to pandemic Q3 20/21 80% Red
pressures, patients are being discharged with a higher level of illness
than would be the case under normal circumstances. Those
discharged, but deemed unfit by MDT to begin reablement
immediately are recorded as returned to hospital. This, coupled with
the unfortunate death of four service users on the START/
reablement pathway, has negatively impacted the figures this
quarter.
Action to resolve: ASC continues its efforts to mitigate the impact of
the pandemic and ensure that those discharged from hospital receive
the highest standard of care possible. Reflecting the patient-focussed
approach of the Service, change of pathway case notes are being
added to each patient file so they are directed to the correct care path
rather than returned to hospital. In addition, START and care
agencies are co-operating to address capacity issues so that the
goals of service users’ care packages can be achieved, and START
and ICT are collaborating to help ease pressures faced by each
team. Work is also underway to update the recording system so that
it better reflects how ASC has responded and been delivering
services in spite of the effects of pandemic and successive
lockdowns. It is expected that this will be reflected in improved figures
next quarter.
CIC16: Number of Stage 1 complaints received

Target 36 or less

Rationale: One third of complaints were related to housing Q1 20/21 20 Green
maintenance. Over the winter period there has been a rise in demand Q2 20/21 38 Amber
for repairs, compounded by Covid-19 restrictions and social Q3 20/21 46 Red
distancing, contractors have not been able to complete as many
maintenance calls per day. This has led to customer dissatisfaction
and an increase in complaints received this quarter.
Action to resolve: The team are working to proactively manage
customer expectations around timescales for repair work and liaising
continuously with contractors to effectively manage workload.

13

The six indicators that have remained Red are:
AS7: Proportion of people receiving long term care who were Target 85% or more
subject to a review in the last 12 months
Q1 20/21 67% Red
Rationale: Performance has remained consistent this quarter in spite Q2 20/21 72% Red
of the stress placed on the team by the resurgence of Covid-19 and Q3 20/21 71% Red
the need for additional welfare checks. The on-going focus on
targeting reviews in order to achieve efficiency savings is delivering
results. The continued emphasis on efficiency savings this financial
year may impact the service's ability to achieve the target set before
the current health and financial crisis.

Action to resolve: The continued emphasis on efficiency savings this
financial year may impact the service's ability to achieve the target
set before the current health and financial crisis.
CS4: Percentage of EHCP assessments completed within 20 Target 90% or more
weeks of referral
Q1 20/21 88% Amber
Rationale: Covid continues to have a direct impact on the 20 week Q2 20/21 72% Red
timescales; however, for plans due in December 100% was Q3 20/21 59% Red
achieved. There has been a significant increase in the number of new
assessment requests: November alone saw 28, with a current total
of live assessments at 74. As the Service strives to tailor provision to
each child, willingness to provide parents with additional time to
consider plans and visit schools affects timeliness.
In addition, pressure on the service has increased: case work has
risen and the complexity of concerns grown. The SEND service has
had additional duties imposed by the government in relation to
completing risk assessments for all children with EHCPs, and there
have been a number of staff changes inevitably causing disruption.
Action to resolve: Steps are being taken to contend with the increase
in workload and case complexity as well as the new responsibilities
imposed by the government. This, coupled with new staff adjusting
to their new roles, will see an improvement in performance moving
forward.
CIC5: Visits to Wokingham Borough libraries

Target visits within
10% of previous qtr
Rationale: At the start of the year, libraries were required to close. (comparison with Q4
Due to the additional resource requirements to operate Covid-safe 19/20)
environments and staff redeployments, libraries have only been able
Q1 20/21 0 Red
to operate at a significantly reduced capacity in the last quarter.
Q2 20/21 16,722 Red
Q3 20/21 12,841 Red
Action to resolve: Additional digital library services were developed
and promoted during lockdown which led to a significant increase in
virtual material loans. Under current Covid-19 requirements libraries
are only able to offer a Click & Collect service.

14

RA3: Usage of Wokingham borough leisure centres

Target 127,556 or
more

Rationale: Whilst Covid-19 has had a significant impact on
attendance and usage at leisure centres across Wokingham Q1 20/21 0 Red
borough, Q3 has seen an improvement in visits. All leisure centres Q2 20/21 57,055 Red
had reopened, post lockdown, albeit at 50% capacity. Leisure Q3 20/21 109,849 Red
centres then closed again due to Tier 4 restriction.
Action to resolve: Special membership offers will be promoted once
leisure centres are able to resume to increase visitor numbers.
RA4: Participation in leisure centre activities to support those Target 1060 or more
who may be experiencing social isolation
Q1 20/21 0 Red
Rationale: The target for 2020/21 is to achieve 50% of the Q2 20/21 543 Red
participation numbers recorded in Wokingham borough leisure Q3 20/21 388 Red
centres during 2019/20. This target has been assigned to take
account of the impacts of Covid-19 on leisure centres; whilst they are
able to reopen, centres are having to operate at 50% capacity.
Actions to resolve: Special membership offers will be promoted once
leisure centres are able to resume to increase visitor numbers.
RA5d: Proportion
accommodation

of

applicants

supported

into

settled Target 40% or more

Q1 20/21 40% Green
Rationale: Opportunities to assist households in securing Q2 20/21 25% Red
accommodation (particularly in the private sector) has been limited Q3 20/21 26% Red
due to the restrictions of Covid-19.
Action to resolve: Prevention and relief activities will resume after
lockdown and more properties will come available on the market. The
service continues to focus on prevention and relief work in order to
reduce the likelihood of households becoming homeless and in
priority need.
The two indicators moved from Green to Amber are:
CS2: Percentage of child protection visits due in the period Target 80% or more
which were completed to the highest standard of 10 working
days since the previous visit
Q1 20/21 81% Green
Q2 20/21 80% Green
Rationale: In spite of the striking increase in service demand this Q3 20/21 78% Amber
quarter - and that there is no statutory requirement for visits to be
completed within ten days - visit timeliness has remained largely
consistent. Indeed, performance has been better than previous
quarters when fewer visits were required.
CIC1: Recorded crime in Wokingham borough (excluding fraud) Target 1,925 or less
Rationale: All crime for Q3 is in line with expected levels. Residential Q1 20/21 1,709 Green
burglary has seen a sharp downturn in incidents largely connected to Q2 20/21 1,916 Green
lockdown and related increases in people working, and staying, at Q3 20/21 1,928 Amber
home. However for the same period, crimes including domestic
abuse and violence against the person have seen an increase.

15

The two indicators that have moved from Amber to Green are:
AS10: Information and Advice at the front door - % of contact Target 16% or more
referrals closed with ‘NFA – Advice and information only’
Q1 20/21 14% Amber
Rationale: More activity is a reflection of external bodies handling Q2 20/21 14% Amber
contacts on behalf of ASC. This has led to an increase in the rate of Q3 20/21 19% Green
'NFAs' as the number of issues referred to the Service which should
not have been has increased.Operational teams are now trialing
strength-based approaches at the front-door.
CIC13: Percentage of calls answered

Target 95% or more

Rationale: Call volumes have increased slightly, compared to the Q1 20/21 94% Green
same period last year. However there has been a 25% increase in Q2 20/21 93% Amber
the number of digital interactions via email, online web chat and Q3 20/21 96% Green
forms. Performance has been maintained due to additional resources
allocated to the team from redeployed library and temporary staff to
meet increased demand; which has helped manage call volumes and
processing work.

The 4 indicators that have moved from Red to Green are:
AS4: Safeguarding timeliness – concerns completed within 2
working days

Target 85% or more

Q1 20/21 96% Green
Rationale: Following a bottle-neck into the safeguarding front-door Q2 20/21 75% Red
last quarter, a stabilisation plan was put in place which has Q3 20/21 89% Green
successfully increased performance in Q3. After an increase in Q2,
concerns have returned to a level similar to preceding quarters and
timeliness is improving. Two vacant posts have been recruited to
which will bring the Adult Safeguarding Hub to full capacity.
AS9: Permanent admissions to residential and nursing care
homes per 100k population

Target 130 or less

Q1 20/21 252.8 Red
Rationale: Even with the inclusion of self-funders and CHC funders, Q2 20/21 191.4 Red
Q3 has seen a return to normal admission levels and achievement of Q3 20/21 130.0 Green
the target rate for the first time since the pandemic struck. It is
anticipated that the latest wave of Covid-19 will result in a rise in
admissions in Q4.
CIC8: Number of fly-tipping incidents

Target 598 or less

Rationale: The service forecast there to be around 2,656 fly-tipping Q1 20/21 468 Green
incidents in Wokingham borough during 2020/21. The 2020/21 Q2 20/21 645 Red
improvement target is to achieve a 10% reduction to this forecast by Q3 20/21 566 Green
March 2021. The forecast for 2020/21 is based on the impact of
Covid-19 on the Council’s waste disposal services and, in particular,
the partial closing and reduced capacity of the two recycling centres.
An improvement and communications plan is in place, along with a
cross-party Member working group to monitor progress.

16

RA7: Revenue budget monitoring forecast position

Target +/1%

Rationale:The current revenue forecast reflects an overspend, taking Q1 20/21 0.0% Green
Covid-19 into account, of £119,000 which is an improved position Q2 20/21 2.0% Red
compared to Q2. The Council is monitoring the impact of Covid-19 Q3 20/21 0.08% Green
very closely and is reporting to central government on a monthly
basis.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe funding pressures, particularly in the face of the COVID-19
crisis. It is therefore imperative that Council resources are focused on the
vulnerable and on its highest priorities.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

N/A

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
None
Cross-Council Implications (how does this decision impact on other Council services,
including properties and priorities?)
This report covers the whole of the Council’s operations.
Public Sector Equality Duty
This report covers a full range of services across the council. It is for noting and discussion
and does not contain recommendations for approval that would involve a policy or service
alteration that would have implications upon people with protected characteristics under
the Public Sector Equality Duty.
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2
N/A
List of Background Papers
Appendix A – Q3 KPI 2020/21 Summary and Detail
Contact Laura Callan
Telephone No 0118 974 6000

Service Communities, Insight & Change
Email laura.callan@wokingham.gov.uk

17

This page is intentionally left blank

19

Appendix A: Key Performance Indicators – Quarter 3 2020/21
For consideration at Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee
Wednesday 24th February 2021

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Headlines – KPIs Q3 2020/21

nge

Green
CIC8
RA2
PG1
PG5
PG13
RA13
RA15

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

AS1
AS4
AS9
AS10
CIC12
CS5
RA7

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

AS11
RA1
CS6
CS7

• PG16

• RA6

• PG3

• PG6
• PG9
• PG21

• RA14a

•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

PG8
PG10
PG15
PG22
CIC13
RA10
RA14b

Amber
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

PG14
PG24
PG25
PG26
RA5b
PG20
RA8

• PG11
• PG17

• RA16

Red

N/A

• RA3
• RA5d

Total

• PG12

34 KPIs performed be
in Q3 than in Q2.

7 KPIs have had no cha
in performance betwe
Q2 and Q3.

20
• CS3

T

CIC1
PG2
CIC11
CS2

• RA12

•
•
•
•
•

RA4
CIC5
AS7
AS3
CS4

•
•
•
•

RA5a
PG19
CIC16
CS1

• PG4
39 Green KPIs

10 Amber KPIs

• RA5c

20 KPIs performed wo
in Q3 than in Q2.

• CIC9
• CIC10
11 Red KPIs

4 KPIs N/A

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

3 KPI no DoT
64 KPIs

Appendix A - KPIs Q

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Summary

Note: KPIs directly impacted by Covid-19 will display the following ico

trong Communities

Lives

21

escription
cial work assessments allocated to commence within 7 days of the requests (counted at point of allocation)
ople aged 65+ who received reablement from the START team following discharge from hospital and remained at home 91
ys later
feguarding timeliness – concerns completed within 2 working days
oportion of people receiving long term care who were subject to a review in the last 12 months
rmanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes per 100k population
ormation and Advice at the front door – Percentage of contact referrals closed with ‘NFA – Advice & Information Only’
oportion of people who use services who receive direct payments – snapshot at end of quarter
oposed alternative measure to Delayed Transfers of Care – in development
rcentage of children who became subject to a Child Protection Plan for a second or subsequent time within 24 months
rcentage of child protection visits due in the period, which were completed to the highest standard of 10 working days since
e previous visit
recorded crime in Wokingham borough (excluding fraud)

scription
centage of young people with statements or EHCPs participating in Employment, Education or Training
centage of Education, Health & Care Plan assessments completed within 20 weeks of referral
centage of former care leavers (up to the age of 21) in Education, Employment or Training
centage of children who attend a Wokingham state-funded school (Primary, Secondary or Special) which is Good or better
centage of early years settings in Wokingham borough with an Ofsted rating of Good or better
mber of visits to Wokingham borough libraries
mpletion to time and budget of regeneration projects (Peach Place, Elms Field, Carnival Pool)
cupancy rate of WBC-owned regeneration units
age of Wokingham borough leisure centres
ticipation in leisure centre activities
centage of successful homeless preventions
centage of successful homeless reliefs completed
mber of households owed a main housing duty
portion of applicants supported into settled accommodation

Frequency
Quarterly

RAG
Green

Direction of Tr
Better

Quarterly

Red

Worse

Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

Green
Red
Green
Green
Green
Red

Worse

Quarterly

Amber

Worse

Quarterly

Amber

Worse

Frequency
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

RAG
Green
Red
Green
Green
Green
Red
Green
Green
Red
Red
Red
Green
N/A
Red

Direction of Tr
Worse
Worse
Better
No change
No change
Worse
No change
Better
Better
Worse
Worse
Better
Worse
Better

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Better
Worse
Better
Better
No change

Appendix A - KPIs Q

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Summary

mes, Right Places

cription
rage percentage of Section 106 and Community Infrastructure Levy allocated to schemes
w Homes Survey
al Plan Update
e year housing supply
using 1-4-5 Challenge
mber of affordable dwellings completed
centage of planning applications determined in the statutory timescales
centage of successfully defended appeal decisions
portion of planning breaches resolved by negotiation
portion of housing stock which meets the Decent Homes Standard

Frequency
Quarterly
Annual
Quarterly
Annual
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

RAG
Green
Amber
Amber
Amber
Green
Green
Green
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Tr
Better
Worse
No chang
N/A
Better
Worse
Better
Worse
Better
No chang

Frequency
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Annual
Annual
Annual
Annual

RAG
Green
Red
Green
Green
Green
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Tr
Better
Worse
Better
Worse
Better
Better
Better
Better

escription
Frequency
erage delay on locally managed A-roads
Annual
erage daily traffic flow – number of vehicles
Annual
oportion of highway infrastructure schemes on track for project delivery
Quarterly
ublicly available electric charging devices per 100,000 population
Quarterly
oportion of adults who do any walking or cycling, for any purpose, at least once a week
Annual
abling sustainable travel: Length of greenways and cycleways delivered
Quarterly
ational
Highways
& Transport
PublicofSatisfaction
Annual
nformation
that contains
a small amount
sensitive dataSurvey
which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

RAG
Amber
N/A
Green
Green
Green
Green
Amber

Green Borough

22

cription
mber of fly-tipping incidents
entage of household waste reused, recycled and composted
portion of municipal waste sent to landfill
entage of waste recycled from the kerbside
bon footprint of Wokingham borough
capita CO2 emissions of Wokingham borough
bon offsetting for Wokingham borough
quality

he Borough Moving

Direction of Tr
Better
Better
Better
Better
Better
No change
Better
Appendix
A - KPIs Q

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Summary
the way we work/ Be the best we can

23

escription
umber of resident subscribers to Wokingham Borough Connect – in development
each and engagement of WBC Communications – public reaction to WBC media – in development
xpected voluntary staff turnover
ckness absence – average days lost per employee
ercentage of calls answered
umber of Stage 1 complaints received
taff engagement survey – Proportion of staff who slightly/ strongly agree “I enjoy working here and would recommend WBC to
iends and family”
hannel shift: Moving towards more digital transactions – in development
evenue budget monitoring forecast position
apital budget monitoring forecast position
eturn on investment portfolio – Property Investment Fund
roportion of Corporate Risks assessed as “Very high risk”
ousing rent arrears (HRA) collection
ebt management: Number of days for customers to pay
ebt management: Arrears collection to reduce outstanding debt
ouncil Tax collection
usiness Rates collection

Frequency
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

RAG
N/A
N/A
Amber
Green
Green
Red

Direction of Trav

N/A
N/A
Worse
Better
Better
Worse

Quarterly

In development

Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

In development
Better
Better
Better
Worse
Better
Worse
Better
Better
Better

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Green
Green
Green
Amber
Green
Green
Green
Green
Amber

Appendix A - KPIs Q

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

Strong Communities - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

al work assessments allocated to commence within 7 days of the requests (counted at point of allocation)

Green

d
21
21
21

Actual
90%
85%
88%

Target
75% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Better

of staff leave on allocations following the relaxation of lockdown restrictions in the
as been redressed in Q3. This quarter has seen the highest number of assessments
9/20 and an improvement in performance, which remains well above target.

e aged 65+ who received reablement from the START team following discharge from hospital, and remained at home 91 days later

Red

24

Target
d
Actual
RAG
Direction of Travel
21
87%
Amber
Better
21
87%
89% or more
Amber
No change
21
80%
Red
Worse
ous quarters this year, due to pandemic pressures, patients are being discharged with
vel of illness than would be the case under normal circumstances. Those discharged,
d unfit by MDT to begin reablement immediately are recorded as returned to
This, coupled with the unfortunate death of four service users on the
lement pathway, has negatively impacted the figures this quarter.

guarding timeliness – concerns completed within 2 working days

d
21
21
21

Actual
96%
75%
89%

Target
85% or more

RAG
Green
Red
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Better

a bottle-neck into the safeguarding front-door last quarter, a stabilisation plan was put
hich has successfully increased performance in Q3. After an increase in Q2, concerns
ned to a level similar to preceding quarters and timeliness is improving. Two vacant
been recruited to which will bring the Adult Safeguarding Hub to full capacity.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Green

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

Strong Communities - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

ortion of people receiving long term care who were subject to a review in the last 12 months

Red

d
21
21
21

Actual
67%
72%
71%

Target
85% or more

RAG
Red
Red
Red

Direction of Travel
Worse
Better
Worse

ce has remained consistent this quarter in spite of the stress placed on the team by
nce of Covid-19 and the need for additional welfare checks. The on-going focus on
eviews in order to achieve efficiency savings is delivering results. The continued
n efficiency savings this financial year may impact the service's ability to achieve the
efore the current health and financial crisis.

manent admissions to residential and nursing care homes per 100k population

Green

25

Target
d
Actual
RAG
Direction of Travel
21
252.77
Red
Worse
21
191.38
130 or less
Red
Better
21
130.00
Green
Better
he inclusion of self-funders and CHC funders, Q3 has seen a return to normal
evels and achievement of the target rate for the first time since the pandemic struck.
ated that the latest wave of Covid-19 will result in a rise in admissions in Q4.

ormation and Advice at the front door - % of contact referrals closed with ‘NFA – Advice & Information only’

d
21
21
21

Actual
14%
14%
19%

Target
16% or more

RAG
Amber
Amber
Green

Direction of Travel
N/A
No change
Better

ty is a reflection of external bodies handling contacts on behalf of ASC. This has led
ase in the rate of 'NFAs' as the number of issues referred to the Service which should
een has increased. Operational teams are now trailing strength-based approaches at
oor.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Green

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

Strong Communities - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

portion of people who use services who receive direct payments – snapshot at end of quarter

Green

d
21
21
21

Actual
30%
32%
32%

Target
31% or more

RAG
Amber
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
N/A
Better
No change

of direct payments has remained consistent across 2020/21.

entage of children who became subject to a Child Protection Plan for a second or subsequent time within 24 months

d
21
21
21

Actual
4%
0%
25%

Target
21% or less

RAG
Green
Green
Red

Red

Direction of Travel
Better
Better
Worse

26

great emphasis on preventing the need for children to return to a Protection Plan - as
n in performance across previous quarters. Q3 2019/20 also saw a surge in numbers,
20/21 has seen the highest number of children on Protection Plans since 2017.

entage of child protection visits due in the period which were completed to the highest standard

d
21
21
21

Actual
81%
80%
78%

Target
80% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Amber

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Worse

he striking increase in Service demand this quarter - and that there is no statutory
nt for visits to be completed within ten days - visit timeliness has remained largely
Indeed, performance has been better than previous quarters when fewer visits were

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Amber

N

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q3

Strong Communities - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

orded crime in Wokingham borough (excluding fraud)

Amber

d
21
21
21

Actual
1,709
1,916
1,928

Target
1,925 or less

RAG
Green
Green
Amber

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Worse

Q3 is in line with expected levels. Residential burglary has seen a sharp downturn in incidents
ected to lockdown and related increases in people working, and staying, at home. However for
riod, crimes including domestic abuse and violence against the person have seen an increase.

ng Lives - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

entage of young people with statements or EHCPs participating in Employment, Education or Training

27

d
21
21
21

Actual
80%
76%
57%

Target/National
57% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Quarter 3 2
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Worse

ople completing education in the summer have their destination status changed to 'Not
st of September each year, as do many young people who entered employment or training
ons have a 52 week currency). It is then the responsibility of the NEET prevention service
hese young people and confirm their destinations. It is therefore not uncommon for the
of young people participating to be low in September but the figure improves as we start to
ege and school enrolment lists.

entage of EHCP Assessments completed within 20 weeks of referral

d
21
21
21

Actual
88%
72%
59%

Target
90% or more

RAG
Amber
Red
Red

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Worse

nues to have a direct impact on the 20 week timescales; however, for plans due in December
chieved. There has been a significant increase in the number of new assessment requests:
lone saw 28, with a current total of live assessments at 74. As the Service strives to tailor
each child, willingness to provide parents with additional time to consider plans and visit
cts timeliness.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Red

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

ng Lives - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

entage of former care leavers (up to age 21) in Education, Employment or Training

d
21
21
21

Actual
54%
62%
64%

Target
52% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Appendix A - KPIs Q

Quarter 3 2
Green

Direction of Travel
Worse
Better
Better

increasingly challenging economic situation resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic, CSC has
onsistently above target for Care Leaver employment, education and training figures across
eflecting the adaptability of the Service and the importance it places on the futures of the
which it has responsibility, CSC has managed to increase the percentage of Care Leavers in
-on-quarter this year.

entage of children who attend a Wokingham state-funded school (Primary, Secondary or Special) rated Good or better

28

d
21
21
21

Actual
88%
87%
87%

Target
85% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Green

N

Green

N

Direction of Travel
No change
Worse
No change

sted inspections have been suspended as part of the COVID-19 response so performance
changed for the year to date.

entage of early years settings in Wokingham borough rated, by Ofsted as, Good or better

d
9
20
0
0

Actual
98.6%
98.0%
98.0%
98.0%

Target
96.1% or more
96.0% or more
96.0% or more
96.0% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Worse
Worse
No change
No change

ed inspections have been suspended as part of the COVID-19 response so performance
hanged for the year to date.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

ng Lives - Key Performance Indicator Profiles
Actual
0
16,722
12,841

Quarter 3 2
Red

s to Wokingham Borough libraries

d
21
21
21

Appendix A - KPIs

Target
Visits within 10%
of previous qtr

RAG
Red
Red
Red

Direction of Travel
Worse
Better
Worse

t of the year, libraries were required to close. Due to the additional resource
nts to operate Covid-safe environments and staff redeployments, libraries have only
to operate at a significantly reduced capacity in the last quarter. Under current
equirements libraries are only able to offer a Click & Collect service.

pletion to time and budget of regeneration projects (Peach Place, Elms Field, Carnival Pool)

29

Milestones (Target)
Elms Field – whole-scheme completion 1st Sep
2020. Commence demolition at Carnival.
Practical completion of Elms Field and fit-out of
businesses. Continue Carnival demolition and
secure Southgate House.

Delivered Actions
Elms Field completed and handed over. Carnival demolition has commenced and is ongoing.
Practical completion at Elms Field achieved on 1st Sep 2020 and fit out of businesses ongoing.
Carnival site demolished and Southgate House demolition commenced in July 2020.

Green

N

Time

B

Slight delay With
On time

With

Further tenants opened and signed for Elms Field. Carnival demolition complete send Sep 20 and site
Ongoing fit-out of businesses and signing of new
handed over to Pellikaan (main contractor) Oct 20. Preparatory works commenced ready for
tenants. Construction works start at Carnival.
construction to begin early 2021.

On time

With

upancy rate of WBC-owned regeneration units

Green

d
21
21
21

Actual
78%
87%
90%

Target
78% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
N/A
Better
Better

cupancy rate equates to around £2m committed income from the lettings from Peach Place
eld. This is a very positive result in what has, and continues to be a very difficult market, which
es the regeneration of Wokingham has responded exceptionally well to market requirements.
m further potential tenants remains high, which is at odds with the national picture.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

ng Lives - Key Performance Indicator Profiles
Actual
0
57,055
109,849

Quarterly Target
127,556 or more
(40% of 19/20 usage)

Quarter 3 2
Red

ge of Wokingham borough leisure centres

d
21
21
21

Appendix A - KPIs Q

RAG
Red
Red
Red

Direction of Travel
Worse
Better
Better

d-19 has had a significant impact on attendance and usage at leisure centres across
borough, Q3 has seen an improvement in visits. All leisure centres had reopened, post
lbeit at 50% capacity. Leisure centres then closed again due to Tier 4 restriction. The target for
o achieve 40% of the total usage recorded in 19/20. This target is considered to be reflective
nt circumstances caused by Covid-19 and taking into account the social distancing restrictions
e in place once leisure centres can reopen.

cipation in leisure centre activities

30

d
21
21
21

Actual
0
543
388

Red

Target

RAG
Red
Red
Red

1,060 or more

Direction of Travel
Worse
Better
Worse

or 2020/21 is to achieve 50% of the participation numbers recorded in Wokingham borough
res during 2019/20. This target is considered to be reflective of the current circumstances
ovid-19 and taking into account the social distancing restrictions which will be in place once
res can reopen. Marketing is underway to promote special membership offers to encourage
turn once centres can reopen.

Red

centage of successful homeless preventions

d
21
21
21

Actual
67%
67%
34%

Target
50% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Red

Direction of Travel
Worse
No change
Worse

ouseholds whose prevention duty ended in Q3 20/21, 15 successfully secured accommodation
s or more. Performance has fallen in Q3 primarily due to the current national lockdown;
isits to properties and with fewer affordable properties becoming available. The majority of
s were due to residents withdrawing their application for assistance, no further contact being
plicants were found not to be homeless or were referred to another local authority. The team
work closely with residents, landlords and families to try to resolve any tenancy-related issues
ction
proceedings
and to
prevent
homelessness
nformation
that contains
a small
amount
of sensitivewherever
data whichpossible.
is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Green

centage of successful homeless reliefs

od
/21
/21
/21

Actual
0%
50%
52%

Target
25% or more

RAG
Red
Green
Green

Appendix A - KPIs

Direction of Travel
Worse
Better
Better

rter 3 20/21 there were 25 households whose relief duty ended; 13 of these successfully
commodation for 6+ months. There has been an increase in the number of successful
eliefs being offered; primarily achieved through securing Council and Housing Association
A full housing journey for the residents we are supporting, will be seen at the end of the
ar. The quarterly monitoring provides a snap shot of the current status however further
be available at year end.

centage of households owed a main duty
Actual
(3/22) 14%
(11/15) 73%
(9/9) 100%

31

d
21
21
21

South East

England

65%
(Q4 19/20)

66%
(Q4 19/20)

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Worse

ness is not successfully prevented or relieved, the local authority will owe the main housing
seholds who have a priority need and are not homeless intentionally. In Quarter 3 20/21,
ds given a main duty decision were owed a Main Housing Duty. Whilst a target is not
this indicator, the aim is to support households through prevention and relief wherever
educe the risk of homelessness.

portion of applicants supported into settled accommodation

d
21
21
21

Actual
40%
25%
26%

Target
40% or more

RAG
Green
Red
Red

Direction of Travel
Worse
Worse
Better

1 108 applications were received; of which 28 (26%) were successfully supported into
ommodation. All homelessness KPIs are directly impacted by Covid-19 lockdown
Demand is forecast to continue to rise in Q4.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Red

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

omes, Right Places - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

age percentage of Section 106 and Community Infrastructure Levy allocated to schemes

Green

d
21
21
21

Actual
99%
99%
100%

Target
94% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
No change
No change
Better

Homes Survey – Percentage of responders satisfied/very satisfied with their new home

d
8
9
0

Actual
89%
86%
83%

Target
85% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Amber

Amber

Direction of Travel
N/A
Worse
Worse

32

esidents would most like to improve about their new home experience is the developer after care
e to snagging issues. This is followed by access to local amenities, of which most mentioned shops,
s, schools and GPs. Road quality was also a key factor where residents felt there was room for
t; issues with potholes and congestion as areas become more populated. Many departments
urvey results to gain further insight into resident behaviour and satisfaction levels.

l Plan Update

stones (Target)
ication of a report on the initial
omes of the consultation
l Development Scheme (LDS) (Jan 2020)
out Regulation 19 consultation for
/Oct 2020

Amber

N

Delivered Actions
RAG
All the consultation responses have been analysed by officers. A report on the initial outcomes of the consultation is due to
Green
be published by the end of Aug 20.
All the draft Local Plan consultation responses have been analysed, and a summary statement of the main issues raised has
Amber
been prepared.

Regulation 19 consultation not undertaken for reasons explained in the rationale. The impact of the change to the DPEX on
sider future Local Plan programme and
the draft Local Plan has been reported to the Planning and Transport Policy Member Working Group. Alternative potential Amber
uired actions
strategies for managing development are being reviewed ahead of future consideration by the Working Group.

raft Local Plan consultation, government announced the joint bid to the Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) by Wokingham, West Berkshire and Reading councils to forward fund infras
rden town was unsuccessful, necessitating consideration of alternative finance models. In addition the Urgent Action Area and the Detailed Emergency Planning Zone (DEPZ) around AWE
expanded
cover
the Grazeley
area,
requiring
further
investigation.
Further engagement
and investigation
with stakeholders
is required,
which will impact on the timings of the next s
nformationand
thatnow
contains
a small
amount of
sensitive
data which
is essential
to communicate
with an individual
but doesn’t require
to be sent via secure
methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

omes, Right Places - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

year housing supply

Amber

Actual
6.68 years (as at 30 Nov 17, housing need of 894 dwellings/year)
6.83 years (as at 31 Mar 2018, housing need of 864 dwellings/year)
6.39 years (as at 31 Mar 2019, housing need of 804 dwellings/year)
5.23 years (as at 31 Mar 2020, housing need of 789 dwellings/year)

Target
5 years
6 years
6 years
6 years

sing 1-4-5 Challenge

RAG
Green
Green
Green
Amber

The deliverable housing land supply is assessed at 5.23 years at 31 Ma
Landowners and developers are were re-surveyed over the Summer 202
account of the initial impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic. National policy
deliverable supply in excess of five years. The assessed supply still exceed
policy, however the supply falls short of the council set target of 6 years.

Cumulative

Green

Cumulative

Green

020, a further 46 homes have been completed in 20/21 in addition to the 68 completed in
ing total completion of 114 to date. 149 housing programmes are on-site and a further
ogressing in partnership with Wokingham Homes, Loddon Homes & Berry Brook Homes
h HRA.

33

mber of affordable dwellings completed

21
21
21

Actual
36
56
49

Target
Cumulative
36
46 or more
92
92 or more
141
138 or more

RAG
Amber
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Worse
Worse
Worse

ty of housing delivery is due to take place during Quarters 3 and 4. Overall predicted
s for the year are slightly down this year compared to previous years as affordable housing
e strategic sites is coming to completion.

entage of planning applications determined in the statutory timescales

d
21
21
21

Actual
98%
98%
99%

Target
60% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
No change
Better

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Green

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

omes, Right Places - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

entage of successfully defended appeal decisions

Green

Actual
78%
78%
74%

Target
65% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
No change
Worse

portion of planning breaches resolved by negotiation

d
21
21
21

Actual
71%
65%
78%

Target
50% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Delivered (68)

d
20
21
21

On-site (193)

Direction of Travel
Worse
Worse
Better

34

ortion of housing stock which meets the Decent Homes Standard

d
21
21
21

Green

Actual
99.1%
99.9%
99.9%

Target
90% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Worse
Better
No change

of Q3, four homes in the housing stock are yet to meet the Decent Homes Standard; due to
9 restrictions which are affecting the supply of doors (required at all four properties). Once
ations are complete, the service will achieve a 100% decency rate for the rest of the
ar.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Green

N

rformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

& Green Borough - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2020
Green

mber of fly-tipping incidents

d
21
21
21

Actual
468
645
566

Target
598 or less

RAG
Green
Red
Green

Direction of Travel
Worse
Worse
Better

forecast there to be around 2,656 fly-tipping incidents in Wokingham borough during
he 2020/21 improvement target is to achieve a 10% reduction to this forecast by March 2021.
t for 2020/21 is based on the impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s waste disposal services and,
r, the partial closing and reduced capacity of the two recycling centres. An improvement and
tions plan is in place, along with a cross-party Member working group to monitor progress.

centage of household waste reused, recycled and composted

35

d
21
21
21

Actual
53%
52%
46%

Target
52% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Red

Red

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Worse

e is below target due to the continued impact of wet paper on recycling. Recycling rates
e during Q3 and Q4 each year due to low tonnages collected from garden waste. Q3 20/21
sional and subject to change.

Green

portion of municipal waste sent to landfill

d
21
21
21

Actual
4.88%
4.90%
3.10%

Target
5% or less

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Better

ata is provisional and subject to change.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

& Green Borough - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

centage of waste recycled from the kerbside

Green

d
21
21
21

Actual
37.2%
31.4%
26.5%

Target
26% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Worse

ata is provisional and subject to change.

36

Green

bon footprint of Wokingham borough

d
2017)

Actual
580 KtCO2e

2018)

573 KtCO2e

2019)

Target
Baseline
Within 1% of
571.6 or less
565.9 or less

RAG
N/A
Green

Direction of Travel
N/A
Better

footprint is based on government figures, reported two years in arrears, published by the
t for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. The baseline corresponds to the Wokingham
otprint in 2017. Carbon dioxide reductions from interventions led by the Council are
o be seen from 2022 when planned projects will be fully implemented. Some of the Council’s
ns include retrofitting public buildings and domestic properties and renewable energy
projects.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

& Green Borough - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

capita CO2 emissions of Wokingham borough

Green

od
(2017)
(2018)
(2019)

Actual
3.5
3.4

Target
Baseline
3.41 or less
3.21 or less

RAG
N/A
Green

Direction of Travel
N/A
Better

Borough is in a period of growth, with development targets over the coming years. This
ncrease carbon dioxide emissions through construction work and population growth. These
missions may have a negative impact on the carbon footprint. Per capita emissions will
e the decrease in emissions in the context of a growing population. A continued population
okingham borough (at a similar rate to that seen over the last five years) has been considered
asting for this measure.

37

Green

bon offsetting for Wokingham borough

d
2017)
2018)
2019)

Actual
-15.64KtCO2e
-15.86 KtCO2e

Target
Baseline
-15.86
-15.88

RAG
N/A
Green

Direction of Travel
N/A
Better

net-zero carbon, Wokingham borough will need to offset some of the carbon dioxide it emits.
es is one of the best ways to do this. Sequestration levels have been steadily increasing in
. Plans are in place to increase afforestation rates and rewilding in areas of the borough;
ly to be implemented from 2023 onwards. Hence the increase in carbon sequestration is
be seen from 2026.

quality

d

Green
Wokingham Town
32.9μg/m3
33.0μg/m3

Twyford Crossroads

M4

29.9μg/m3

39.1μg/m3

Target
40μg/m3
40μg/m3
40μg/m3

RAG
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse

ource of air quality pollutants in Wokingham borough is road transport, and the main pollutant of concern is nitrogen dioxide (NO2). There are three Air Quality Management Areas in Woking
lared as exceeding the annual average NO2 objective. These are located in Wokingham Town Centre, Twyford Village Centre Crossroads and along, and 60m either side of, the M4 throughou
erall, NO2 levels
in Wokingham
borough
remain data
below
target
and hence
performancewith
is reported
as Green
for 2019
reporting
year.
nformation
that contains
a small amount
of sensitive
which
is essential
to communicate
an individual
but doesn’t
require
to be sent
via secure methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

g the Borough moving - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

erage delay on locally managed A-roads – seconds per vehicle per mile

Amber

Actual
42.1
40.5
38.4

South East
37.5 (up to 41.3)
37.6 (up to 41.4)
35.1 (up to 37.9)

RAG
Amber
Green
Amber

Direction of Travel
Worse
Better
Better

erage daily traffic flow – number of vehicles
Actual
6,231
6,046
5,967

South East
5,233
5,223
5,255

RAG
N/A

Direction of Travel
Better
Better
Better

38

The Council’s transport team have carried out some analysis to explore ave
traffic flow between Apr – Dec 2020 and compare this to flow rates in the
year. A sample was taken at two site locations (A4 Bath Road and A32
Road). These charts show the average flow at these two locations per mont

portion of Highways Infrastructure Schemes on track for delivery

21
21
21

Actual
60%
53%
74%

Target
51% or more

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Better

re provides an overview of progress on the highway infrastructure schemes. Six major
chemes are being monitored comprising of Arborfield Cross Relief Road, North and South
Distributor Roads, Nine Mile Ride, Barkham Bridge, Winnersh Relief Road Phase 2. A further
tional schemes, Thames Valley and Coppid Beech Park and Ride and California Cross Roads,
onitored as part of Highways Infrastructure . Some of these schemes include subsidiary
ses and as such a total of 15 phases contribute to this measure and each is assigned a RAG
dicate progress.

Green
For Q3 2020/21, 74% (11 phases) are reported as Green
since they are on track for delivery, 13% (2 phases) are
Amber since there is some time delay or risk identified
and the remaining 13% (2 phases) are reported as Red.
3 schemes have improved from Amber to Green in Q3
20/21, and 1 scheme has deteriorated from Amber to Red.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

g the Borough moving - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

blicly available electric charging devices per 100,000 population

Green

No. devices Rate per population South East (rate)
52
31.0
26.7
52
30.4
27.0
53
31.0
28.9

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
No change
Better

lished by the Department for Transport. The latest release is for Oct 2020. Since October,
m borough has 53 publicly available charging devices; which equates to 31 per 100,000
(comparable with around 60%-80% of local authorities across the United Kingdom). From
population estimate was used for all local authorities. Therefore for Wokingham, although
r of devices remains fairly static the rate per 100,000 may appear different due to a higher
estimate now being used in the calculations. The Council has a target to deliver 1,000
rge devices by 2025.

39

oportion of adults who do any walking or cycling, for any purpose, at least once a week

d
17
18
19
20

Actual
74.4%
77.6%
80.4%

Target
N/A
74.4% or more
77.6% or more
80.4% or more

RAG
Green
Green

Green

Direction of Travel
N/A
Better
Better

ational indicator reported by the Department for Transport through data collected from the National Travel Survey and Active Lives Survey, run by Sport England. The Nation
household survey of personal travel by residents of England travelling within Great Britain, from data collected via interviews and a one-week travel diary. The Active Lives Su
survey by residents of England from data collected via a web-survey. Latest available national data is for 2018/19 (which was last updated in Aug 2020). The next update, for 2
d Summer 2021.

Green

abling sustainable travel: Length of greenways and cycleways delivered

d
21
21
21

Actual
0km
0km
0km

Target
670m by May
21

RAG
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
N/A
No change
No change

N

The Council aims to deliver additional cycleway/greenway areas between 20/21 an
Section 1 of these improvement plans covers Cantley Park to Woosehill Meadows. Th
planned to be completed by May 2021 (timescales have been adjusted) and wi
surfacing of 670m at Cantley Park. The tender is currently being evaluated and contra
scheduled to commence work in Jan 21.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q3

g the Borough Moving - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

tional Highways & Transport Public Satisfaction Survey

Amber

Target/NHT Average
50%
52%

RAG
Amber
Amber

Direction of Travel
N/A
Better

ts are published by National Highways & Transport Network (NHT). The survey measures
across six themes and each Local Authority is assessed against the NHT average in order to
performance. This indicator reports on overall satisfaction recorded for Wokingham borough
ith NHT average scores. The chart displays Wokingham’s scores for each theme compared to
rages (shown in grey).

Delivered (68)

Overall
49%
51%

On-site (193)

ng the way we work/ Be the best we can - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

mber of resident subscribers to Wokingham Borough Connect

40

Total subscribers
49,408
53,367
50,042

Of which are for Covid-19 alerts

Of which are for other alerts

39,712 (79%)

10,330 (21%)

f Q3, Wokingham Borough Connect has approximately 50,000 subscribers; 79% of which are signed
ly for Covid-19 alerts.

okingham Borough Council social media impressions, engagement and followers
Total social media impressions
1,239,735

Social media engagements
57,043

Social media followers (as Jan 21)
30,779

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Quarter 3 2

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q3

ng the way we work/ Be the best we can - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

pected voluntary staff turnover

Amber

Target
d
Actual
RAG
Direction of Travel
21
9%
Amber
Worse
12.5%
21
8%
Amber
Worse
(+/- 2.5%)
21
7%
Amber
Worse
19 pandemic continues to drive voluntary turnover down as people seek to retain
in an unstable job market. Staff turnover between 10-15% is considered to be
and in line with national trends. Hence performance within this range is reported as

kness absence – average days lost to sickness per employee – rolling 12 months

41

d
21
21
21

Actual
6.5
5.7
5.0

Target
6.6 or less

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Green

Direction of Travel
Better
Better
Better

bsence continues to fall during the pandemic. The Council is seeing few cases of
elated absence Home working may also be a factor as staff work through minor
mplaints which might normally keep them from a place of work.

rcentage of calls answered

d
21
21
21

Actual
94%
93%
96%

Target
95% or more

Green
RAG
Green
Amber
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Better

s have increased slightly, compared to the same period last year. However there has been a
e in the number of digital interactions via email, online web chat and forms. Performance has
ained due to additional resources allocated to the team from redeployed library and
taff to meet increased demand; which has helped manage call volumes and processing work.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

ng the way we work/ Be the best we can - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

mber of Stage 1 complaints received

d
21
21
21

Target

Actual
20
38
46

36 or less

Appendix A - KPIs Q

Quarter 3 2
Red

RAG
Green
Amber
Red

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Worse

complaints were related to housing maintenance. Over the winter period there has been a
nd for repairs, compounded by Covid-19 restrictions and social distancing, contractors have
e to complete as many maintenance calls per day. This has led to customer dissatisfaction
ease in complaints received this quarter. The team are working to proactively manage
pectations around timescales for repair work and liaising continuously with contractors to
anage workload.

Green

nue budget monitoring forecast position

42

Actual (BAU)
0.0%
0.3%
-0.43%

Target
+/-1%

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Actual (incl.
Cov-19)

RAG

2.0%
0.08%

Red
Green

Direction of Travel
Better
Worse
Better

is monitoring the impact of Covid-19 very closely and is reporting to central government on a
is. We also continue to make representations to government for the need for extra funding to
dditional spend from Covid-19. Current revenue forecast reflects an overspend, including
£119,000.

tal budget monitoring forecast position

d
21
21
21

Actual
0.0%
-0.3%
-1.0%

Target
+/-1.0%

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Green
Direction of Travel
Better
Better
Better

red financially prudent to report an underspend as Green (on target) when there are no
e impacts upon service delivery occurring as a result. There may often be some variance in
actuals throughout the year and at year end depending on the nature of any planned
The concern is whether these are unexplained or uncontainable and this would become
rough regular financial monitoring and the accounting practices that exist within the council.
ng reported at Q3 20/21 represents a forecast variance underspend of £1.8m.

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

ng the way we work/ Be the best we can - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

urn on investment portfolio – Property Investment Fund

d
21
21
21

Actual
5.25%
5.08%
5.29%

Target
5%

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Appendix A - KPIs Q

Quarter 3 2
Green

Direction of Travel
No change
Worse
Better

rate is forecast to drop in 2021 as we manage expected lease expiries and of course suffer
ncome default due to Covid-19 economic impact.

portion of Corporate Risks assessed to be “very high” risk

Amber

43

Borough Council has 19 corporate risks identified, and being monitored, in the Corporate Risk Register. A risk is
o be 1) low-medium, 2) high, or 3) very high depending on the likelihood of the risk occurring and the impact it
A risk considered to have high impact as well as high likelihood is reported as "very high" risk and is monitored
performance measure. Five risks are currently deemed to be very high; these relate to 1) budgeting and financial
t, 2) local play delays and appeals, 3) SEND reforms, 4) adult social care provider market and 5) regulatory

using Rent Arrears (HRA) collection

d
21
21
21

Actual
31.9%
50.4%
75.0%

Target
32.7%
49.3%
75.0%

Green
RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
Worse
Better
Better

travel for this indicator is based on the variance between actual performance and the
get. For example, if actual is closer to target in a quarter then performance is reported as

nformation that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

erformance Indicators Q3 2020/21 – Detail

Appendix A - KPIs Q

ng the way we work/ Be the best we can - Key Performance Indicator Profiles

Quarter 3 2

ebt management: Number of days for customers to pay

Green

d
21
21
21

Actual
24.57
17.32
28.63

Target
30 days or less

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Direction of Travel
N/A
Better
Worse

ebt management: Arrears collection to reduce outstanding debt

d
21
21
21

Actual
53%
59%
66%

Target
18%
35%
53%

RAG
Green
Green
Green

44

Actual
29.1%
57.2%
86.3%

Cumulative
Target
30.5%
58.0%
86.0%

RAG
Green
Green
Green

Green

Direction of Travel
N/A
Better
Better

uncil Tax collection

d
/21
/21
/21

Cumulative

Green

Direction of Travel
Worse
Better
Better

travel for this indicator is based on the variance between actual performance and the assigned
example, if actual is closer to target in a quarter then performance is reported as better.

Cumulative

iness Rates collection

d
21
21
21

Actual
32.0%
56.7%
83.5%

Target
31.2%
57.8%
84.5%

RAG
Green
Amber
Amber

Direction of Travel
Worse
Worse
Better

ant payments were outstanding in December 2020. However one payment was received in
and this will be reflected in the Q4 performance update. The team are working closely with
es to support them through these very challenging times. Direction of travel for this KPI is
that contains
a small
amount of sensitive
data whichtarget.
is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.
enformation
variance between
actual
performance
and the assigned

Amber

Agenda Item 76.
TITLE

Improving O&S Work Programming, Monitoring
and Reporting

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee on
24 February 2021

WARD

None Specific

DIRECTOR

Graham Ebers, Deputy Chief Executive

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
A key aim of the Overview and Scrutiny process is to engage with residents to identify
topics of importance and to provide evidence of satisfaction with Council and partner
services such as the NHS and Thames Valley Police. Another key aim is to provide
assurance that public money is being spent wisely and is being targeted on the stated
priorities of the public service providers. The proposals in the report aim to make Overview
and Scrutiny more effective by strengthening the process for developing work
programmes and more effective monitoring and reporting during the year.
RECOMMENDATION
The Committee is requested to:
1) consider the proposed ideas for improving horizon scanning and the development of
Overview and Scrutiny work programmes;
2) consider the proposed ideas for monitoring and tracking progress against Overview
and Scrutiny recommendations;
3) note that potential items for the 2021/22 work programmes will be submitted to the
Committee’s meeting in March 2021.
SUMMARY OF REPORT
The Council has a well-established Overview and Scrutiny process. As Council resources
become more constrained it is important that Overview and Scrutiny focuses on key
elements of service delivery and policy development, both inside and outside the Council.
At its meeting on 20 January 2021, the Committee began the process of developing O&S
Work Programmes for 2021/22. Effective work programming is a Member-led process
aimed at shortlisting and prioritising issues of community concern together with issues
arising out of the Council Vision and Corporate Delivery Plan and major policy or service
changes.
The report sets out proposals to improve “horizon scanning” to ensure that emerging
issues and policies are factored into the Overview and Scrutiny work programmes at an
early stage. It also contains proposals to track the actions taken in response to Overview
and Scrutiny recommendations in order to strengthen the feedback loop and measure
improvements.

45

Background
At its meeting on 20 January 2021, the Committee began the process of developing O&S
Work Programmes for 2021/22. Effective work programming is a Member-led process
aimed at shortlisting and prioritising issues of community concern together with issues
arising out of the Council Vision and Corporate Delivery Plan and major policy or service
changes. It aims to:





reflect local needs and concerns;
prioritise topics for scrutiny which had the most impact or benefit;
involve local residents and stakeholders;
be flexible enough to respond to new or urgent issues.

In order to generate ideas and involvement from local residents, community groups and
stakeholders, the Council’s website and social media are used to publicise the
development of the Work Programmes. In considering potential issues for review,
Members take into account the following selection criteria:








Whether the issue was of local, and preferably current, concern;
Whether undertaking the review can be linked to the Council’s Vision and Corporate
Delivery Plan;
Whether the topic was already being reviewed elsewhere within the Council (e.g. as
part of the Continuous Improvement Programme);
Whether the topic was capable of being influenced by one of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committees;
Whether the topic had a manageable scope – not too wide-ranging and yet of
sufficient size to warrant a Scrutiny review;
Whether sufficient resources were available to support the Scrutiny review;
If a review was warranted, should it have a high, medium or low priority?

Over recent years, there have been examples of new policies and key decisions that have
been implemented or taken without initial consideration by Overview and Scrutiny.
Members have emphasised the importance of pre-decision scrutiny as an important
method of influencing those policies and decisions. It provides an opportunity to challenge
assumptions and to explore the ways in which risk has been assessed and mitigated.
At the January 2021 meeting, Members asked for a paper setting out some options to
improve “horizon scanning” to ensure that potential issues of importance were identified
early and factored into the Overview and Scrutiny work programming process.
Under the current arrangements, the work programming process begins at the start of
each calendar year. Executive and non-Executive Members, CLT, Town and Parish
Councils, community groups and residents are invited to contribute to a longlist of
potential items. The list of items is then considered by the Management Committee in
March, resulting in a proposed work programme for each of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committees. In addition to the approved list, other items can be added during the year.
So, for example, the Covid-19 pandemic was added as a significant element of the
2020/21 work programmes. In addition to the agreed work programmes, the Management
Committee considers the Executive Forward Programme at each meeting in order to
identify further items of interest.

46

In order to identify potential items for the work programmes at an earlier stage, it is
suggested that Members consider the following suggestions for improved horizon
scanning:


At the first Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting in the new Municipal Year, the
relevant Executive Member/s and Director/s be invited to attend in order to discuss
priorities for the year ahead and any new/updated policies or plans that will be
submitted to the Executive. As an example, the Leader and Chief Executive would
be invited to the Management Committee whilst the Executive Member for Adult
Social Care and the Director of Adult Services would be invited to HOSC.



Members will recall the Executive-Overview and Scrutiny Protocol, agreed in 2019,
which includes provisions for more regular dialogue between Overview and Scrutiny,
the Executive and CLT. It is suggested that more regular meetings are set up to
achieve the aim of improved information sharing and closer working. Those meetings
could include discussion on emerging issues/policies which may benefit from early
or pre-decision scrutiny. As a reminder, the Protocol is appended to the report.

Tracking Overview and Scrutiny Recommendations
At recent meetings of the Committee, Members have discussed the process for tracking
the Committee’s decisions in order to ensure that appropriate actions are taken and a
feedback loop is in operation. In order to strengthen this process it is suggested that each
Overview and Scrutiny Committee introduces an Action Tracker report. The report would
list recommendations/actions agreed at each meeting along with a simple progress
update. This would enable Members to build up a picture during the year of progress on
their decisions. It would also allow progress chasing to be carried out if specific deadlines
have not been achieved. As an example, the table below sets out an Action Tracker report
relating to the decisions taken at the January 2021 meeting. The report would then be
updated at each subsequent meeting to build a picture of activity and progress throughout
the year.
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee – Draft Action Tracker 2020/21
O&S Management Committee – 20 January 2021
Agenda Item

Action

WBC Response to the
Covid-19 pandemic

 Chairman to write to the Leader with two additional
recommendations;
 Funding for early years settings to be considered at
Children’s Services O&S;
 Add two new work programme items – Green
Recovery and New Ways of Working

 Completed

 Begin process for developing 2021/22 work
programmes;
 Report to Feb meeting on ways to improve horizon
scanning and work programme development

 Completed

O&S Work Programmes
2021/22

O&S Management Committee – March 2021

47

Update
 TBC
 Completed

 Completed

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result of
the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the next
three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

0

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
N/A

0

N/A

N/A

0

N/A

N/A

N/A

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
None
Cross-Council Implications
Effective Overview and Scrutiny helps to drive service improvement, policy development
and the achievement of value for money for the Borough’s residents.

Public Sector Equality Duty
Due regard has been given to Council’s the Public Sector Equality. The ideas for
improvement aim to raise the profile of Overview and Scrutiny for residents across the
Borough, including residents with protected characteristics as defined under the Equality
Act 2010.

Contact Neil Carr
Telephone No 0118 974 6058
Date 12 February 2021

Service Democratic Services
Email neil.carr@wokingham.gov.uk
Version No. 1

48

Wokingham Borough Council
Executive – Overview and Scrutiny Protocol

Aims
1. The aim of the Protocol is to clarify the relationship between the Executive and
the Overview and Scrutiny Committees in order to ensure the smooth conduct of
Overview and Scrutiny business and to encourage effective communication
between Scrutiny and Executive Members. This will lead to more effective
scrutiny of and support for the Executive, resulting in better outcomes for the
residents of the Borough.
General Principles
2. The Council’s Constitution (Para. 6.1.1) sets out the key functions of Overview
and Scrutiny, viz:





Holding the Executive to account;
Policy Development and Review;
Performance Monitoring;
External Scrutiny (of partners, contractors and arm’s length organisations).

Effective delivery of these functions requires an organisational culture which
recognises the important role that Overview and Scrutiny plays and lays the
foundations for it to succeed.
3. Executive and Overview and Scrutiny functions should maintain high standards
of public accountability, transparency and respect. Relations between the
Executive and Overview and Scrutiny should not be confrontational but be a
positive and constructive collaboration in order to secure improved outcomes for
the residents of the Borough.
4. Overview and Scrutiny Members will work together with the Executive in a
bipartisan environment and aim to adopt a non-adversarial but challenging
approach in order to identify improvements and add value.
Working Together
5. In seeking agreement to this Protocol, it is acknowledged that there are different
rights and roles of both Overview and Scrutiny and Executive Members but that
both are committed to developing an effective working relationship. This will
involve, but not be limited to:



Frequent and honest dialogue between Executive Members and Overview
and Scrutiny Members;
Regular discussions regarding Executive and Overview and Scrutiny work
programmes;

49





Opportunities for Overview and Scrutiny involvement in pre-decision
scrutiny and policy development and review;
Maintaining effective formal and informal reporting structures;
Respecting the confidential nature of any exempt/confidential discussions
that may take place.

Work Programmes
6. Generally, the Overview and Scrutiny Committees are able to scrutinise any
issue which affects the Borough or its residents. At the start of each calendar
year the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee begins the process of
developing work programmes for each of the Scrutiny Committees for the
upcoming Municipal Year.
7. The Leader of the Council, Executive Members and the Corporate Leadership
Team are consulted on potential issues to be included within the work
programme. The final content of the work programmes is decided by the
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee. Additional items may be added
to the work programmes during the year.
8. In determining items to be included in the work programmes, Overview and
Scrutiny Members will apply the selection criteria set out in the Constitution as
follows:







Items of local and, preferably, current concern;
Items linked to the Council’s corporate objectives (e.g. Council Plan);
Items not being reviewed elsewhere;
Items capable of being influenced by the Committee;
Items of manageable scope: sufficient size to warrant a Scrutiny review;
Items which can be scrutinised within available resources.

9. Overview and Scrutiny Members will review the Council Plan priorities, the
Executive Forward Programme and the Individual Executive Member Decision
Forward Programme on a regular basis in order to identify potential items for
review.
10. Biannual discussions will be held between the Chairman of the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Committee, the Leader of the Council and representatives
of the Political Groups to ensure that there is clarity on the work programmes
and that any matters arising are addressed. Similar discussions will be held with
the Council’s Chief Executive.
Scrutiny Process
11. The Council’s Constitution (Paragraph 6.1.5) sets out the process for carrying
out the Scrutiny role. Overview and Scrutiny Committees may:


Question Members of the Executive and/or Committees and Officers of the
Council about their decisions and/or performance;

50








Make requests for information from external organisations and partner
authorities;
Seek independent expert advice or appoint specialist advisers (subject to
budget availability);
Appoint non-voting co-opted members as necessary;
Assign members of the Management Committee lead roles in relation to
review topics or areas within its terms of reference;
Gather information informally by working individually or in small Task and
Finish Groups;
Visit external organisations as part of the information gathering role.

12. Once a Scrutiny review topic has been agreed the relevant Executive Member
and Director will be informed of the terms of reference. The Executive Member
and Director will also be invited to attend the Committee meeting when the final
review report is considered.
13. When a Scrutiny review report is approved for submission to the Executive or
Council, the relevant Executive Member and Director will be invited to submit
comments on the report, including which recommendations they accept. For
each recommendation accepted they will set out how and when the
recommendation will be implemented. For each recommendation that is not
accepted reasons will be given.
14. The relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chairman will attend the meeting
of the Executive to introduce the Scrutiny report. In the Chairman’s absence,
another member of the Committee will attend the Executive meeting on his/her
behalf. Similarly, the relevant Chairman, or substitute, will address Council to
introduce a Scrutiny report.
15. The Executive or Council will consider any Scrutiny review report within two
months of receipt of the report. Details of decisions made by the Executive or
Council in relation to the report’s recommendations will be circulated to all
members of the Council.
Access to Information
16. In addition to their individual rights as Members, Overview and Scrutiny
Members have additional rights to see documents relating to:



Any business that has been transacted at a public or private meeting of the
Executive, or its Committees;
Any decision taken by an individual Member of the Executive or by an
Officer in accordance with Executive arrangements.

17. Relevant documents must be provided within 10 days of a request from an
Overview and Scrutiny Member. There is a limitation on such requests in relation
to draft documents, exempt or confidential information (unless relevant to a
Scrutiny review) and advice from a political adviser. If the Executive decides not
to provide information requested it must provide reasons.

51

Call-In
18. The Call-In process will be used in exceptional circumstances, where five nonExecutive Members believe that a decision was not taken in line with the
following principles:







Proportionality (action proportionate to the desired outcome);
Due consultation and the taking of professional advice from Officers;
Human rights will be respected and considered at an early stage in the
decision-making process;
A presumption in favour of openness;
Clarity of aims and desired outcomes;
For Executive decisions, details of options taken into account and the
reasons for decisions will be recorded.

19. The relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee cannot overturn the decision that
has been called in. It may either concur with the decision (in which case the
decision will take immediate effect) or refer it back to the Executive for further
consideration, including any recommendations from Scrutiny Members.
Communication and Publicity
20. It is important that the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees receives
broad publicity in order to ensure that residents and community groups are able
to engage with the process. Scrutiny Members and Officers will work with the
Council’s Communications Team to coordinate Calls for Evidence and Press
Releases relating to the work of the Committees and any Task and Finish
Groups. Social media and the Council’s website will be utilised whenever
possible. Liaison will take place with Executive Members and Directors, as
necessary, to ensure clear and consistent communications.
Monitoring and Review
21. The Council’s Monitoring Officer and Scrutiny Officer will monitor compliance
with the Protocol in liaison with Executive and Overview and Scrutiny Members
and the Corporate Leadership Team. Any matters arising will be reported to
Council through the Annual Overview and Scrutiny report.

52

Agenda Item 77.

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee and
Overview and Scrutiny Committees

Annual Reports
2020/21

Produced: February 2021
Received by Council: 18 March 2021

53

Contents

Page No

Foreword by Councillor Pauline Helliar-Symons, Chairman of the Overview
and Scrutiny Management Committee

3

Section 1 – What is Overview and Scrutiny?

4

Section 2 – Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

6

Section 3 – Report of the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

9

Section 4 - Report of the Community and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

12

Section 5 – Report of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

15

Section 6 - Getting Involved in Overview and Scrutiny

18

54

2

Foreword by Councillor Pauline Helliar-Symons,
Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Committee

Welcome to the Annual Reports of Wokingham Borough Council’s Overview and Scrutiny
Committees for 2020/21.
The role of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees is to hold decision makers to account, both
inside and outside the Council. The Committees also play a role in developing and reviewing
policy and ensuring that the Council and its partners are working effectively to improve services
for residents, businesses and visitors to the Borough.
The 2019/20 Annual Reports highlighted a number of major challenges facing the Borough
including financial uncertainty, demand and cost pressures, the funding of social care, housing
numbers, traffic congestion and the Climate Emergency. Since then, the impact of the Covid19 pandemic has changed everything. The Council has spent much of the past year in
responding to the pandemic. The response, to date, has been very positive and has
demonstrated the dedication and commitment of Council staff, partner organisations and the
hundreds of community volunteers across the Borough.
In carrying out the role of “critical friend” the Overview and Scrutiny Committees carried out a
major review of the Council’s response to the pandemic. This covered a wide range of issues
including support to care homes, schools and early years’ settings, health partnerships,
communications and engagement with “at risk” groups in the community. We also looked at the
impact of the pandemic on the poorest residents of the Borough and its effect on mental health.
We noted that the Council’s financial stability had enabled it to respond quickly and effectively,
in contrast to many other local authorities. Our overall findings were reported to the Executive
in February 2021.
We recognise that the impact of Covid-19 will continue for the next few years, at least. Its
financial impact will force the Council to seek new ways of working and new ways of delivering
services. To date the signs are positive that the Council will be able to maintain key front-line
services allied to innovation and continuous improvement. The Overview and Scrutiny
Committees will continue to ensure that decisions are effective and transparent and that public
services deliver value for money for Council Tax payers.
The Annual Reports also demonstrate the wide range of other issues considered during the
year. They reflect the hard work and commitment of residents, community stakeholders,
Members and officers who contributed to the work of the Committees.

Pauline Helliar-Symons,
February 2021

55

3

SECTION 1 – WHAT IS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY?
Wokingham Borough Council is a large, complex organisation with a thousand employees and
an annual budget in excess of £130m. The Borough’s Community Vision (February 2020) is to
make the Borough “a great place to live, learn, work and grow and a great place to do business”.
The Council makes major strategic decisions which affect the long-term future of the area and
its communities. It also makes decisions on a daily basis which affect the lives of some of the
Borough’s most vulnerable residents. Other public service providers such as the NHS, Thames
Valley Police and the Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service also make key decisions which
affect the residents of the Borough. In order to ensure that the Council and other service
providers spend public money wisely and make well informed decisions about key services it
is essential that an effective system of checks and balances is in place.
A distinction is drawn between “Overview” which focuses on the development of policy and
“Scrutiny” which looks at decisions that have been made, or are about to be made, to ensure
that they are fit for purpose. In this document “Scrutiny” refers to both Overview and Scrutiny.
The Council’s Executive takes decisions within the financial and policy framework set by the
full Council. Non-Executive Members of the Council (representing each of the political groups)
are appointed to the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees to review those decisions
and the performance of key services. The relationship between Council, Executive and
Overview and Scrutiny is illustrated in the diagram below:

COUNCIL
All 54 Members of the full Council meet
six times each year. Full Council agrees
the Budget and the Policy Framework for
the year ahead

EXECUTIVE

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

The Leader of the Council appoints
up to nine Executive Members. The
Executive is empowered to take all
executive decisions (collectively or
individually) within the Budget and
Policy Framework agreed by the full
Council

Non-Executive Members from the
different political groups are
appointed by the full Council to
provide checks and balances on the
decisions taken by the Executive,
review service performance and
advise the Executive on policy issues

In order to deliver the Overview and Scrutiny function the Council has established the following
Committees:


Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee – responsible for overseeing the Scrutiny
function and developing an annual work programme for each of the Committees.

56

4





Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee – responsible for scrutiny of services
relating to schools, safeguarding and child protection, looked after children and children
with special educational needs and disabilities.
Community and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee - responsible for scrutiny of
Council services, crime reduction and community safety and flood risk management.
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – responsible for scrutiny of local NHS bodies,
public health arrangements and the work of the Local Healthwatch service.

The Committees consider issues at their regular meetings or by setting up time-limited Task
and Finish Groups. The Council’s Overview and Scrutiny structure is illustrated below:

Children’s
Services
Overview and
Scrutiny
Committee

Community and
Corporate
Overview and
Scrutiny
Committee

Health
Overview and
Scrutiny
Committee

Task and Finish Groups

Four Principles of Effective Scrutiny
 Constructive “critical friend” challenge to the Executive and external service providers;
 Channelling the “voice” of the public and representing all the Borough’s residents;
 Members reaching bipartisan conclusions based on the weight of evidence;
 Driving continuous improvement which promotes community wellbeing and quality of life.
Limitations
Overview and Scrutiny is not about the investigation of minor matters or individual complaints.
The Council has a separate corporate complaints procedure which is used to investigate
individual complaints about services. Similarly, Overview and Scrutiny does not look at quasijudicial matters such planning or licensing issues. Finally, Overview and Scrutiny is not used
for raising issues of a party political nature as these matters can be addressed through debate
at full Council meetings.

57

5

SECTION 2
REPORT OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Pauline Helliar-Symons, Chairman of the
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee has three principal roles. Firstly, to
develop and oversee the work programmes of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny
Committees. Secondly to investigate specific issues of concern raised by local residents and
community stakeholders. Thirdly, to ensure that Scrutiny Members receive training and support
to enable them to carry out their work effectively.
As mentioned above, a significant part of the Committee’s focus over the past year was on the
Council’s response to the Covid-19 pandemic. We scrutinised (virtually) a number of issues
including the Borough’s Outbreak Management Plan, changes to the organisational structure,
the local Test and Trace programme and the impact of the pandemic on the poorest residents,
the unemployed and the homeless.
The Committee considered a number of other issues during the year including the quarterly
performance management report on key services, unauthorised encampments, waste and
recycling, street cleansing and grounds maintenance. We also held a “Call-In” meeting to
review the decision making process relating to the purchase of reusable dry sacks for dry
recycling, to replace the existing black boxes.
The Committee also established a Climate Emergency Task and Finish Group which met seven
times between May and September 2020. The Group reviewed the Council’s Climate
Emergency Action Plan, heard from expert witnesses and made a number of recommendations
for improvement to the Executive. The Group will continue its work in 2021/22.
The Management Committee will continue to focus on initiatives to strengthen the Overview
and Scrutiny process. This will include greater emphasis on pre-decision scrutiny, additional
training and support for Members, greater involvement from residents and community groups
and closer liaison with the Executive and the Council’s Corporate Leadership Team.
Finally, I would like to thank the Members, officers, residents and partner organisations who
contributed their time, effort and insights during this challenging period.
Pauline Helliar-Symons

58

6

Remit of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee oversees the Council’s Scrutiny function
and is responsible for developing and co-ordinating the work programmes and support for the
three Overview and Scrutiny Committees.
Membership
Councillor Pauline Helliar-Symons (Chairman).
Councillors Alison Swaddle (Vice-Chairman), Jenny Cheng (part year), Andy Croy, Paul
Fishwick, Jim Frewin, Guy Grandison, Emma Hobbs (part year), Sarah Kerr, Abdul Loyes, Ken
Miall, Andrew Mickleburgh, Malcolm Richards (part year), Rachelle Shepherd-Dubey and Oliver
Whittle (part year).
Substitute Members: Councillors Laura Blumenthal, Shirley Boyt, Chris Bowring, Prue Bray,
Jenny Cheng, Stephen Conway, Carl Doran, Lindsay Ferris, Michael Firmager, Graham
Howe, Clive Jones, Barrie Patman and Simon Weeks.
Officer contact: Neil Carr

neil.carr@wokingham.gov.uk

Highlights from the Year
Covid-19 Pandemic
The Committee coordinated a major review of the Council’s response to the Covid-19
pandemic. The review considered a wide range of issues including maintenance of key
Council services, coordination of the community response through the “One Front Door”,
effectiveness of emergency plans and the impact of Covid-19 on the most vulnerable groups
in the community. The other Overview and Scrutiny Committees reviewed key issues relating
to their remit. The Management Committee’s final report was submitted to the Executive in
February 2021. The report’s recommendations highlighted the outstanding response
delivered by the Council and its partners. They also focussed on the importance of issues
such as domestic violence, poverty, health inequalities, partnership working, continuous
organisational improvement and effective communication and engagement with “at risk”
groups in the community.
Performance Management
The Committee received quarterly Performance Management reports setting out details of the
Council’s performance against a number of financial, staffing and operational indicators.
Members used the quarterly data to probe on areas of underperformance and select issues for
more in-depth scrutiny. This included requesting that relevant officers attend future meetings in
order to provide more information and context on specific indicators.
Climate Emergency
The Committee established the Climate Emergency Task and Finish Group involving
Councillors Alison Swaddle (Chairman), Keith Baker (to be replaced by Pauline Helliar-Symons
in 2021/22), Andy Croy, Andrew Mickleburgh and Malcolm Richards. The Group met virtually
during the summer of 2020. The Group received evidence from WBC officers, the Executive
Member, the Local Enterprise Partnership and Professor Paul Chatterton from the University

59

7

of Leeds. The Group’s report was submitted to the Executive in November 2020. It concluded
that the Climate Emergency Action Plan was an ambitious document, in line with best practice.
However, more work was required in a number of areas to strengthen the Action Plan and to
ensure that the governance structure delivered rigorous challenge and effective public scrutiny.
Unauthorised Encampments
The Committee considered a report on the Council’s powers, policies and procedures relating
to unauthorised encampments. The report outlined the measures being taken to minimise any
detrimental impact on local communities and the measures being taken to protect potentially
vulnerable sites across the Borough. It also considered proposals to meet future needs of the
Gypsy, Romany and Traveller communities through additional site provision. Members asked
about the ways in which information and support was provided to residents, landowners,
elected Members and travellers. We welcomed the provision of additional information for
residents, improvements to the information on the Council website and the introduction of
annual Member training sessions.
Member Training
The Committee recognises the importance of ongoing training and development to ensure that
Members’ skills and knowledge are constantly upgraded. Training sessions have been held on
key elements of effective Overview and Scrutiny including preparing for meetings, questioning
techniques and the development of key lines of enquiry. We will deliver further training for
Members in 2021 and will work with the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny to ensure that our
policies and procedures are in line with best practice.

Scrutiny Impacts
Assessing the impact of Overview and Scrutiny is not easy. An effective Scrutiny function
influences decision making and policy development in a variety of ways. The development of
robust challenge, questioning and examination of the issues helps to drive better decision
making with greater transparency and accountability. Effective Scrutiny should have a defined
impact on the ground, with the Committees making recommendations that make a tangible
difference to the work of the Council and other public service providers.
Over the past year the following impacts are highlighted:


Covid-19 Pandemic – the Committee received evidence from a number of partner
organisations and considered the findings from a Residents’ Survey. The Committee’s
recommendations increased the level of focus on vulnerable groups in the local community.



Climate Emergency Task and Finish Group – the Task and Finish Group highlighted the
importance of working with schools, businesses and community stakeholders to develop a
Vision for Net Zero. It also stressed the importance of SMART targets to enable effective
monitoring of progress against the priorities in the Council’s Action Plan.



Unauthorised Encampments – the Committee recognised that this was a serious and
emotive issue for residents. Members stressed the importance of clear, timely information
for residents and landowners. We welcomed the proposals to review future site provision
and to deliver training for Members which would enable them to inform and support
residents more effectively.

60

8

SECTION 3
REPORT OF THE CHILDREN’S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

Alison Swaddle, Chairman of the Children’s
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Committee’s work is split almost equally between children’s social work and educational
attainment. As well as monitoring all the recommendations put in place by earlier Committees
and Task and Finish Groups, the new work that has come its way is outlined below. This is in
addition to the normal performance monitoring that we do at each meeting. This keeps the
Committee in touch with how the Service and schools, especially the ones that have had
Ofsted inspections, are performing.
We also monitor what the Service is doing to help schools requiring improvement, or schools
causing concern, to improve. This year there was a particular focus on the local authority’s
response to the pandemic in supporting our schools and school leaders.
The Committee invites the Regional Schools Commissioner to attend once a year to
scrutinise the performance of academy schools in the Borough.
All members of the Committee and their substitutes are invited to attend training at the start of
the first meeting each year as Children’s Services is an area that is constantly changing and
we are keen to keep up-to-date with new legislation and service developments. Training is
also arranged during the year if specific needs arise.
I would like to thank all members of the Committee, and the substitutes for their commitment
to and interest in the work that we do, and for all the positive and genuinely useful
contributions that they have made.
Alison Swaddle

61

9

Remit of the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
The Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for scrutiny and
policy development in relation to services for children and young people. This includes
schools, early years’ settings and children’s centres, safeguarding and child protection,
children in care and services for children with special educational needs and disabilities.
Membership:
Councillors: Alison Swaddle (Chairman), Jenny Cheng (Vice-Chairman), Prue Bray, Andy
Croy, Pauline Helliar-Symons, Ken Miall, Andrew Mickleburgh, Malcolm Richards. In
December 2020 the membership changed to Councillors: Alison Swaddle (Chairman),
Malcolm Richards (Vice-Chairman), Prue Bray, Andy Croy, Pauline Helliar-Symons, Ken
Miall, Laura Blumenthal and Andrew Mickleburgh.
Parent Governor: two vacancies.
Substitute Members:
Councillors: Michael Firmager, Emma Hobbs, Abdul Loyes Barrie Patman, David Hare, Sarah
Kerr, Shirley Boyt and Carl Doran.
Representatives of the Church of England Diocese and the Roman Catholic Diocese are also
able to attend meetings of the Committee when Education issues are being considered. At
the moment these posts are vacant.
Officer contact: Luciane Bowker

luciane.bowker@wokingham.gov.uk

Highlights from the Year
Performance Management
At each meeting the Committee reviewed the performance of Children’s Services in relation to
Key Performance Indicators. Members challenged the Service, asking for relevant information
and context in relation to Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s). The report format continues to
evolve in response to the Committee’s requests. Of particular interest is the improvement in
the timeliness and quality of Education Health and Care Plans (EHCP).
Schools’ Performance/ Coronavirus Response
The Committee received regular updates in relation to how the local authority has been
supporting schools during the Coronavirus pandemic. Ofsted inspections were suspended
and the national exams did not take place. Therefore, it has not been possible to assess
schools’ performance against national indicators for the 2020 year. The Committee
scrutinised the 2019 results. This situation is being monitored and the Committee will seek to
continue to receive schools’ performance indicators once inspections and exams start again.
The Committee also challenged the service to demonstrate efforts to address the educational
gap which will result from the disturbed learning during this difficult year.
Virtual School
The Committee received a comprehensive report from the Virtual School and was pleased to
note that the Virtual School service is being extended from 5-16 year olds to 0-25 year olds.

62

10

The Committee was informed that all Children In Care (CIC) are being offered online tutoring
to help with their learning during the pandemic. The Committee challenged the service to
provide evidence of the impact of the online tutoring programme to CIC’s education. This will
continue to be monitored.
Regional Schools Commissioner (RSC)
The Committed received a representative from the RSC to review academy schools’
performance. It was reassuring that the RSC did not raise any concerns over the Borough’s
academy schools. The RSC’s relationship with the local authority is strong and it was
strengthened during the pandemic. The Committee was also updated on the process of
choosing a trust for the Northern House School, now the Chiltern Way Academy (part of the
Chiltern Trust).
CAMHS Review
The Committee received an update about mental health services being provided for children
and young people in the Borough. The Committee asked for more information around various
issues which caused concern during discussions of this item and, as a result, a joint meeting
of the Children’s Services and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees is being organised
to continue the scrutiny of the offer of mental health services in the Borough.
Children’s Services Response to Covid-19
The Committee received a review of how the service has been operating since the lockdown
in March 2020 and how services have been able to adapt and continue to be delivered. It
was reassuring to learn that the service was able to carry on offering sustained respite care
during this time, undertake a children’s social care audit for quality assurance, as well as the
usual activities.
School Placements Sufficiency
The Committee considered the offer of school places and the planning of future provision for
each phase of education, as well as SEND provision. The Committee recommended the
retention of sixth form provision at schools in the Borough and encouraged broadening of the
offer of subjects and apprenticeship opportunities.
SEND Strategy
The Committee received a comprehensive review of the new SEND Strategy. The new
strategy is much more ambitious than the previous one and was co-produced with all
stakeholders. The Committee will continue to review its development and implementation.
The Committee also reviewed the following items: Child Exploitation, the development of the
Compass Team and measures taken to reduce the need for children to return to a child
protection plan.
Scrutiny Impacts
 Performance management – improved layout and content to provide more up-to-date
information, trends and service narratives. Improved transparency and accountability.


Response to the Coronavirus pandemic – encouraging the service to help schools and
school leaders to deal with the challenges arising as a result of the current pandemic.

63

11

SECTION 4
REPORT OF THE COMMUNITY AND CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Guy Grandison, Chairman of the
Community and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

During the past year, the Committee has continued its focus on the delivery of Council services
to ensure that they provide value for money for the Borough’s Council Tax payers. Executive
Members and Officers were invited to attend meetings of the Committee to give evidence and
answer questions on priorities and performance. Conducting Committee meetings in a virtual
environment has allowed greater access and convenience for the public to engage with the
Overview and Scrutiny process, in addition to reducing travelling requirements for Members,
officers, and participating members of the public.
This year marked the second consecutive year that Overview and Scrutiny have looked at the
proposed Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) in detail, prior to its journey through the
February 2021 Executive and Budget Council meetings. This exercise has continued to add
value to the Budget setting process by challenging Executive Members and Directors to explain
the rationale for spending proposals in a clear and understandable way.
The Committee considered a range of other issues during the year including flood prevention,
burial ground provision, and the Highways Maintenance Strategy. The Committee also
undertook a detailed review of the Council’s business, community, and charity response to the
Covid-19 pandemic. Both the Committee and I wish to thank all those individuals who came
together to meet the needs of the community during these very difficult times.
In developing its work programme the Committee is keen to ensure that the “voice” of local
residents and community groups plays a bigger part in its deliberations. The Committee
recognises that involving residents, community groups and local “experts” in Overview and
Scrutiny reduces the risk of a partisan approach as Members are able to hear directly from
those stakeholders whose interests they are representing. The Committee will continue to
promote greater public involvement in Overview and Scrutiny over the coming year and will
share any relevant learning with the other Overview and Scrutiny Committees.
I thank the Members of the Committee, Officers, residents and other stakeholders who took
part in our meetings for their valuable contributions during what has been a difficult year.
Guy Grandison

64

12

Remit of the Community and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
The Community and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is responsible for the scrutiny
of internal Council operations and partnership working across the Borough. It also has
responsibilities under the Police and Justice Act 2006 which involves oversight of the operation
of the Borough’s Community Safety Partnership. The Committee is also responsible for the
scrutiny of flood risk management.
Membership
Councillor Guy Grandison (Chairman).
Councillors Emma Hobbs (Vice-Chairman), Shirley Boyt, Paul Fishwick, Clive Jones, Graham
Howe, Abdul Loyes and Alison Swaddle.
Substitute Members: Councillors Chris Bowring, Andy Croy, Carl Doran, Michael Firmager,
Pauline Helliar-Symons, Ken Miall, Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey, Malcolm Richards and
Caroline Smith.
Officer contact: Callum Wernham:

callum.wernham@wokingham.gov.uk

Highlights from the Year
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 2021-24
The Committee undertook a detailed overview of the proposed 2021-24 MTFP. Executive
Members and Directors were invited to attend the meetings to present their bids and explain in
detail how the requested funding would be used to deliver key services. Members welcomed
the inclusion of ‘plain English’ detailed bid sheets which provided key figures and descriptive
narratives in a format that Members and members of the public could understand and interpret.
The Committee probed bids within key service areas, including agency worker staffing within
Children’s Services, care and support within Adult Social Care, income generation within
Resources and Assets, substantial capital bids within Customer and Localities, and the
Continuous Improvement Programme within Communities, Insight and Change. The role of the
Committee was to challenge assumptions within the budget setting process and to encourage
key decision makers think about their proposals from a different perspective. The Committee
appreciated this continued level of transparency on the proposed MTFP and budget setting
process, and looked forward to this process continuing and improving in future years.
Business, Community and Charity Initial Response to the Covid-19 Pandemic
The Committee engaged with Council officers and staff from within the voluntary sector in order
to assess how Wokingham Borough Council had helped to manage the initial business,
community and charity response to the Covid-19 pandemic. Members received presentations
from Directors and senior staff from various Council departments, in addition to hearing from
the Chief Executive of Wokingham Citizen’s Advice. A selection of topics considered by the
Committee included the community and voluntary sector response (including the Wokingham
‘one front door’ approach), the housing response (including offering accommodation to all those
who were considered as homeless within the Borough), the community safety response, and
communications and engagement response. Members were grateful for the hard work and
effort that went into enabling every aspect of the initial response to the pandemic, and thanked

65

13

officers for giving up their time to present examples of the outstanding work that had been going
on across the Borough.
Burial Ground Capacity
The Committee considered an update on burial ground capacity within the Borough. The
Committee initially had concerns regarding the overall capacity across the Borough, and
capacity for specific religious burials such as Muslim burial plots. The Committee considered
several updates, and during this period Council officers and staff at sites across the Borough
undertook research to calculate the total amount of available plots, and identify areas of
possible expansion. The Committee was pleased to hear that there was currently provision for
between 17 and 20 years of burials within Wokingham Borough. A number of sites across the
Borough were identified as potential areas for expansion, including Earley Town Council’s plans
to expand their existing provision at May’s Lane. Members were pleased that burials of specific
faith were being provided for within the Borough, including burials for followers of the Baha’i
faith. The Committee were delighted that many, if not all, of the concerns originally raised had
been mitigated. The Committee praised all involved for doing a sterling job. The Committee
identified this as an example of Overview and Scrutiny working particularly well.
Highways Maintenance Strategy
The Committee reviewed WBC’s Highways Maintenance Strategy. Members were advised how
roads were selected for maintenance, and the different processes that were carried out in order
to maintain roads and highways. The Committee asked that Highways officers and the
Executive Member for Highways and Transport seek to formally engage with Town and Parish
Council’s when developing the three year programme for surface maintenance.

Scrutiny Impacts


Budget and Budget setting process transparency – information regarding the Budget and
the Budget setting process has been thoroughly reviewed by the Committee, and made
publically available in an easy to read ‘plain English’ format. Transparency around crucial
issues such as the Budget forms an essential part of the checks and balances that
Overview and Scrutiny provides.



Close working relationship with Executive Members and Directors – Executive Members
and Directors were invited to, and attended, a number of Committee meetings. Answers
to Member queries were frank and detailed, providing a solid foundation for transparent
Overview and Scrutiny.



Oversight of delivery of key Council Services – continued monitoring of key Council
Services to ensure that they are delivering value for money for residents. Probing
Services to think about service delivery and value for money is key in delivering cost
effective services for residents. Services showed their resilience and expertise via their
initial response to the Covid-19 pandemic.



Proposed that Highways officers and the Executive Member for Highways and Transport
seek to formally engage with Town and Parish Council’s when developing the three year
programme for highways surface maintenance.

66

14

SECTION 5
REPORT OF THE HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Ken Miall, Chairman of the
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee has concentrated on health and social care
matters that affect residents.
Throughout the year the Committee has heard from the Council’s Adult Social Care team and
the Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust regarding the response to the Covid-19 pandemic.
Briefings were also received from a number of other bodies including the Thames Valley
Local Pharmacy Committee and NHS Berkshire West Clinical Commissioning Group.
The Committee has kept informed of significant developments within the local health and care
system, such as the Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation’s Building Berkshire Together
development programme.
Members continue to work with Healthwatch Wokingham Borough, the independent
consumer champion created to gather and represent the views of Wokingham Borough
residents, receiving updates on their work at most meetings.
Finally, I would like to thank the members of the Committee, Officers, residents and other
stakeholders who took part in meetings for their contribution throughout the year.

Ken Miall

67

15

Remit of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
The Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) scrutinises issues relating to the
planning, provision and operation of health and wellbeing services in the Borough. This
includes acute and community health services, adult social care services, family and public
health services and health related services commissioned jointly by the Council, health bodies
and the voluntary sector. The Committee exercises powers conferred to it through the Health
and Social Care Act 2012 and the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing
Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013.
Membership
Councillor Ken Miall (Chairman).
Councillors Abdul Loyes (Vice Chairman), Rachel Bishop-Firth, Jenny Cheng, Jim Frewin,
Guy Grandison, Clive Jones, Adrian Mather, Bill Soane and Michael Firmager (from October
2020), Alison Swaddle (until October 2020).
Substitute Members: Chris Bowring, Gary Cowan, David Hare, Pauline Helliar-Symons,
Emma Hobbs, Graham Howe, Tahir Maher, Malcolm Richards, Caroline Smith and Simon
Weeks.
All attendees at HOSC meetings, including members of the public, may ask questions after
each report or presentation is presented.
Officer contact: Madeleine Shopland

madeleine.shopland@wokingham.gov.uk

Highlights from the Year
Council’s Response to Covid-19 – Care Homes
The Committee scrutinised the Council’s response to the pandemic with regards to care
homes, thus far, receiving a briefing in July 2020. They noted that Adult Social Care had
proactively supported the care sector and had worked with the care homes to facilitate mutual
aid across the sector. Support provided included, an improved funding deal for care homes
the Council contracted with, helping to source Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and the
provision of advice and guidance. Members commended the decision taken to refuse to take
residents back into care homes from hospital, unless they had been tested for Covid-19, prior
to Government guidance on this matter being issued.
The Committee received a further briefing with regards to the provision of PPE and financial
support. The Committee concluded that the Council’s response to the pandemic in relation to
care homes had ultimately been very positive, based on strong partnership working, effective
decision-making and communications.
Pharmacy Services
The Committee was updated on pharmacy services in the Borough at the Committee’s
September meeting, by Kevin Barnes and David Dean, Thames Valley Local Pharmacy
Committee. Members sought information regarding pharmacy service provision during the
pandemic and were pleased to note that 95% of pharmacies had been open consistently

68

16

throughout the pandemic. Whilst there had initially been some issues around staffing and
ensuring staff safety and that customers queued safely, these had mostly been addressed.
Building Berkshire Together
The Committee was briefed on the Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust’s Building
Berkshire Together development programme at its September meeting. Under the
Government Health Infrastructure Plan, funding would be provided for 40 new hospital
projects over the next ten years. It was a major opportunity for the Trust, the local
communities, and staff to improve services, patient experience and the environment. The
Trust was one of 21 NHS Trusts to receive seed funding of £2million to develop ideas. All
possibilities would be considered including refurbishment and rebuilding the existing site,
substantial refurbishment and rebuild, completely new hospital on the current site and
completely new hospital on a new greenfield or brownfield site.
Members received a further briefing on the progress of the development programme and the
different possible options available, at the January 2021 Committee meeting.
Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust
The Committee received an update from the Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust at its
November 2020 meeting. Members sought information on issues such as whether the Trust
would be able to maintain stroke, heart attack and cancer services during the pandemic,
escalation plans, testing of staff and clearing any backlog in service provision.
Future commissioning of NHS hydrotherapy services in Berkshire West
The Committee monitored the NHS Berkshire West CCG consultation on the future
commissioning of NHS hydrotherapy services in Berkshire West and received a briefing on
the outcome of this consultation, in January 2021. Based on the clinical effectiveness, value
for money and analysis of the consultation, the CCG had agreed to not routinely fund NHS
hydrotherapy services apart from on an exceptional basis via an Individual Funding Request.
Members were pleased that the service would remain available for those with a particular
clinical need.
Healthwatch
The Committee have continued to receive frequent updates on the work of Healthwatch
Wokingham Borough, including on the following:





GP surgery website accessibility;
Accessing health services during the pandemic and in particular, dental services;
Perinatal services;
Deaf or hard of hearing patients accessing virtual GP appointments.

Scrutiny Impacts


Ensuring that residents’ needs are considered as part of the commissioning and delivery
of local health services and continuing to work with Healthwatch Wokingham Borough to
raise the profile of matters raised by local service users.



Developing an overview of key health and social care services that served the Borough.

69

17

SECTION 6
GETTING INVOLVED IN OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
The Council is committed to making Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings accessible to
all residents of the Borough. A key aim is to increase public involvement in the process and to
remove barriers to participation.
Residents can get involved in Overview and Scrutiny by attending meetings - all Overview and
Scrutiny meetings are open to the public and are held in the early evening to make attendance
easier. In addition, copies of Agendas including reports to be considered are published five
working days before each meeting and can be accessed on the Council’s website:
www.wokingham.gov.uk/council-and-meetings
During the Covid-19 pandemic, meetings have been held virtually using Microsoft Teams.
These meetings are accessed via a You Tube link set out on the meeting Agenda.
Residents can also elect to receive automatic notification when new Overview and Scrutiny
Agenda and Minutes are published.
Each Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting (including virtual meetings) includes a Public
Question Time session which allows residents to raise issues of general interest and/or specific
issues relating to the items under consideration.
Members of the public are also able to contribute to Scrutiny reviews by giving evidence either
as an individual or as part of a community group. Residents can also request that a specific
item is considered by Overview and Scrutiny as a review item. Residents can complete an
online Scrutiny review suggestion form at:
www.wokingham.gov.uk/council-and-meetings/decisions/ask-for-a-scrutiny-review
During 2021/22 the Council will continue to use local and social media to raise awareness of
issues coming before the Overview and Scrutiny Committees and to allow residents to provide
comments and feedback.
The Council’s Twitter feed is accessible here: WokinghamBorough@WokinghamBC
If you want to learn more about Overview and Scrutiny or want to discuss a specific issue,
please contact Neil Carr, the Council’s Scrutiny Officer:
by telephone: 0118 974 6000, or
by email: neil.carr@wokingham.gov.uk or by post:
Democratic Services, Wokingham Borough Council, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN.

70

18

WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL EXECUTIVE FORWARD PROGRAMME
THIS DOCUMENT IS A “NOTICE” IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS)(MEETINGS AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION)(ENGLAND)
REGULATIONS 2012

Executive Forward Programme - February to May 2021
Updated 16 February 2021

Ref No.

Subject for Decision

Decision
to be
taken by

List of Documents to
be submitted to the
Decision Maker for
consideration and
Background
Documents

Contact Details
(Director/ Author)

Responsible Lead
Member

Statement as to whether the
item is likely to be considered
in private and if so the
reasons why / Explanation
for any deferment of item

Executive Meeting 18 February 2021

71

Housing Revenue Account
Budget 2021/22
Purpose:
To consider the Housing Revenue
Account Budget for the 2021/22
financial year

Executive

Director,
Communities,
Insight and Change
- Keeley Clements/
Mark Thompson

Executive Member
for Finance and
Housing - John
Kaiser

N/A

WBC1184

Building Control Charges
Purpose:
To agree to the setting of Building
Control Charges from 1st April
2021 in line with 1.6% CPI
inflationary increase.

Executive

Director, Place and
Growth - Chris
Traill/
Roger Paine

Executive Member
for Environment
and Leisure - Parry
Batth

N/A

WBC1186

Capital Programme and
Strategy 2021-2024
Purpose:
To agree the Capital Programme
and Strategy for 2021-24

Executive

Deputy Chief
Executive Graham Ebers/
Mark Thompson

Executive Member
for Finance and
Housing - John
Kaiser

N/A

WBC1187

Treasury Management Strategy
2021-2024
Purpose:
To agree the Treasury

Executive

Deputy Chief
Executive Graham Ebers/
Mark Thompson

Executive Member
for Finance and
Housing - John
Kaiser

N/A

Agenda Item 78.

WBC1182

Ref No.

Decision
to be
taken by

Subject for Decision

List of Documents to
be submitted to the
Decision Maker for
consideration and
Background
Documents

Contact Details
(Director/ Author)

Responsible Lead
Member

Deputy Chief
Executive Graham Ebers/
Mark Thompson

Executive Member
for Finance and
Housing - John
Kaiser

Statement as to whether the
item is likely to be considered
in private and if so the
reasons why

Management Strategy for 202124
WBC1188

Medium Term Financial Plan
2021-2024 Including Revenue
Budget Submission 2021/22
Purpose:
To provide the Executive with the
key Revenue budget extract of
the Medium Term Financial
Plan (MTFP) for 2021/24
including the proposed revenue
budget submission for 2021/22

Executive

N/A

Extraordinary Executive Meeting 25 February 2021
Equality Plan
Purpose:
To consider the Equality Plan and
its objectives

Executive

Director,
Communities,
Insight and Change
- Keeley Clements/
Laura Callan

.Leader of the
Council - John
Halsall

N/A

WBC1189

Officer Response to the
Recommendations from the
Overview and Scrutiny Report WBC's Response to the Covid19 Pandemic
Purpose:
To consider the Officer response
to the 10 Recommendations in
the report of the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Committee
- Wokingham Borough Council's
Response to the Covid-19
Pandemic (November 2020)

Executive

Chief Executive Susan Parsonage/
Neil Carr

.Leader of the
Council - John
Halsall

N/A

WBC1178

Community Vision Review
Purpose:

Executive

Director,
Communities,

.Leader of the
Council - John

N/A

72

WBC1180

Ref No.

Subject for Decision

Decision
to be
taken by

List of Documents to
be submitted to the
Decision Maker for
consideration and
Background
Documents

To consider the review of the
Community Vision and Corporate
Priorities

Contact Details
(Director/ Author)

Responsible Lead
Member

Insight and Change
- Keeley Clements/
Laura Callan

Halsall

Statement as to whether the
item is likely to be considered
in private and if so the
reasons why

Executive Meeting 25 March 2021
Draft Leisure Strategy
Purpose:
To seek approval for a draft
Leisure Strategy and consultation
with stakeholders. The current
Leisure Strategy needs updating
and broadening to fit with wider
corporate priorities.

Executive

WBC1176

Housing Strategy 2020 - 24
Purpose:
To approve the Housing Strategy
2020 - 24 following public
consultation on the draft housing
strategy

Executive

WBC1177

Home to School Transport
Policy (inc. SEND)
Purpose:
To provide an update on the
outcome of the public consultation
on proposed new Home to School
Transport and Travel Assistance
policies

WBC1190

Wokingham School
Admissions Arrangements
2022/23
Purpose:
To determine the school
admissions arrangements for
Wokingham Borough for the

WBC1151

73

Deputy Chief
Executive Graham Ebers/
Grant Thornton

Executive Member
for Environment
and Leisure - Parry
Batth

N/A
This item was deferred from the
November Executive in order to
carry out more extensive
engagement with key
stakeholders

Director, Place and
Growth - Chris
Traill/
Frances Haywood

Executive Member
for Finance and
Housing - John
Kaiser

N/A

Executive

Director, Children's
Services - Carol
Cammiss/
Sal Thirlway

Executive Member
for Children's
Services UllaKarin Clark

N/A

Executive

Director, Children's
Services - Carol
Cammiss/
Piers Brunning

Executive Member
for Children's
Services UllaKarin Clark

N/A

Housing Strategy 2020 24
Action plan for Housing
Strategy 2020 - 24

Ref No.

Subject for Decision

Decision
to be
taken by

List of Documents to
be submitted to the
Decision Maker for
consideration and
Background
Documents

Contact Details
(Director/ Author)

Responsible Lead
Member

Statement as to whether the
item is likely to be considered
in private and if so the
reasons why

Academic Year 2022/23

The Executive will not be holding a meeting in April therefore there are no items programmed for this month
Executive Meeting 27 May 2021
WBC1183

Learning Disabled
Accommodation - Development
and Adaptation of Four Surplus
Caretaker Properties
Purpose:
To agree to the development and
adaptation of four surplus
caretaker properties for learning
disabled clients

74
Ref No.

Executive

Director, Place and
Growth - Chris
Traill, Director,
Adult Social Care
and Health - Matt
Pope/
Frances Haywood,
Jenny Lamprell

Executive Member
for Health,
Wellbeing and
Adult Services Charles Margetts,
Executive Member
for Finance and
Housing - John
Kaiser

N/A

EXECUTIVE FORWARD PROGRAMME
CHANGES MADE TO PREVIOUSLY PUBLISHED VERSIONS

Subject for Decision

Members of the Executive:John Halsall
John Kaiser
Stuart Munro
UllaKarin Clark
Gregor Murray
Parry Batth
Charles Margetts
Pauline Jorgensen
Wayne Smith
Charlotte Haitham Taylor

Decision
to be
taken by

Original Schedule
Date

Contact Details
(Director/ Author)

Responsible Lead
Member

Leader of Council
Deputy Leader of the Council and Executive Member for Finance and Housing.
Business, Economic Development
Children’s Services
Resident Services, Communication and Emissions
Environment and Leisure
Health, Wellbeing and Adult Services
Highways and Transport
Planning and Enforcement
Regeneration

Explanatory notes

Ref No.

Subject for Decision

Decision
to be
taken by

List of Documents to
be submitted to the
Decision Maker for
consideration and
Background
Documents

Contact Details
(Director/ Author)

Responsible Lead
Member

Statement as to whether the
item is likely to be considered
in private and if so the
reasons why

Note:
Unless the matter has been listed as being likely to be discussed in private, copies of the reports associated with the above decisions will be available no earlier than five
days before the meeting at the Council Offices, Shute End, Wokingham; on the Council’s website; by contacting a member of the Democratic Services Team on 0118 974
6053 or by emailing democratic.services@wokingham.gov.uk

75
5

This page is intentionally left blank

WOKINGHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL
INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISIONS FORWARD PROGRAMME
THIS DOCUMENT IS A “NOTICE” IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS)(MEETINGS AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION)(ENGLAND)
REGULATIONS 2012

Individual Executive Member Forward Plan - February 2021 Update 1
Updated 16 February 2021

Ref No.

77

IMD
2021/07

Subject for Decision

West Berkshire Minerals and Waste Local
Plan Proposed Submission November 2020
Purpose:
To consider the council's response to the West
Berkshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan
Proposed Submission consultation.
Date 16 Feb 2021
Meeting Room and Time Virtually at 4.00pm

Decision
to be
taken by

Executive Member
for Planning and
Enforcement Wayne Smith

List of documents to
be submitted to the
Decision maker for
consideration and
Background
documents
Report
Recommended
response

Contact Details
(Director/ Author)

Director, Place and
Growth - Chris Traill/
Ian Bellinger

Statement as to whether
the item is likely to be
considered in private and if
so the reasons why/
Explanation for any
deferment of item
N/A

New National Cycle Design Guidance - July
2020
Purpose:
This report provides a high-level summary of the
government’s vision and associated new
guidance for cycling infrastructure design. By
embracing the guidance at an early stage, WBC
will be well placed to develop policy along with
the numerous benefits that Active Travel brings
to all residents, visitors and businesses in the
borough as part of our existing wider
sustainability, climate change and placemaking
principles.
Date 15 Mar 2021
Meeting Room and Time Virtually at 5pm

Executive Member
for Highways and
Transport - Pauline
Jorgensen

Director, Place and
Growth - Chris Traill/
Sofia Charalampidou

N/A

IMD
2021/10

Write off of Non-Collectable Business Rates
Debt
Purpose:
The write off of non-collectable debt ensures
that the council ledgers are accurate and up to
date.
Date 16 Mar 2021
Meeting Room and Time Virtually at 4pm

Executive Member
for Finance and
Housing - John
Kaiser

Deputy Chief Executive
- Graham Ebers/
Andrew Kupusarevic

N/A

Updated Tree Inspection Framework
Purpose:
To highlight the changes to the Tree Inspection
Framework adopted in February 2016.
Date 31 Mar 2021
Meeting Room and Time Virtually at 11am

Executive Member
for Environment and
Leisure - Parry Batth

Director, Place and
Growth - Chris Traill/
Peter Baveystock

N/A

78

IMD
2021/09

IMD
2021/08

2

Members of the Executive:John Halsall
John Kaiser
Stuart Munro
UllaKarin Clark
Gregor Murray
Parry Batth
Charles Margetts
Pauline Jorgensen
Wayne Smith
Charlotte Haitham Taylor

Leader of Council
Deputy Leader of the Council and Executive Member for Finance and Housing.
Business, Economic Development
Children’s Services
Climate Emergency
Environment and Leisure
Health, Wellbeing and Adult Services
Highways and Transport
Planning and Enforcement
Regeneration

Note:
Unless the matter has been listed as being likely to be discussed in private, copies of the reports associated with the above decisions will be
available no earlier than five days before the meeting at the Council Offices, Shute End, Wokingham; on the Council’s website; by contacting a
member of the Democratic Services Team on 0118 974 6054 or by emailing democratic.services@wokingham.gov.uk

79
3

This page is intentionally left blank

DRAFT WORK PROGRAMMES 2020/21

Please note that the Work Programme is a ‘live’ document and subject to change at short notice. The information in this Work
Programme, including report titles is draft and is subject to approval by the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee.
The Overview and Scrutiny Committees will consider their work programmes at the first meeting in the new Municipal Year.

81

Agenda Item 79.

1

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
ITEM

PURPOSE OF REPORT

REASON FOR
CONSIDERATION

CONTACT
OFFICER

31 March
2021

WBC Response to
Covid-19

To consider an update on the Council’s response to
the Covid-19 pandemic

Standing Item

Neil Carr

Equality Strategy

To consider the Council’s updated Equality Strategy

Work Programme

Laura Callan

O&S Work
Programmes

To finalise the O&S Work Programmes for 2021/22

Standing Item

Neil Carr

Executive/IEMD
Forward
Programme

To consider upcoming Executive and Individual
Executive Member Decision items

Standing Item

Neil Carr

Work Programmes

To consider the individual Work Programmes for the
O&S Committees

Coordination

Neil Carr

82

DATE OF
MEETING

Other items:


Development of the co-produced Anti-Poverty Strategy



Partnership working with charities and other bodies tackling poverty



Update on the operation of the new Street Sweeping contract



WBC Website Development

2

CHILDREN’S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
2020/21 WORK PROGRAMME

83

DATE OF
MEETING

ITEM

PURPOSE OF REPORT

REASON FOR
CONSIDERATION

22 March
2021

Executive Member
update

To receive an update from the Executive Member
for Children’s Services

Elective Home
Education

To receive information about the Borough’s children
being educated at home.

Diversity and
Equality at Schools

To understand how schools are dealing with and
recording issues of diversity, equality and racism.

Review of Covid-19
response

To review the service’s response to Covid-19

CSO&S Forward
Plan

To consider the forward plan of the Committee

3

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER /
CONTACT
OFFICER
Standing item
Executive
Member for
Children’s
Services
To review Elective
Children’s
Home Education
Services/ Sal
Thirlway
To promote Diversity Children’s
and Equality and to
Services / Sal
be actively against
Thirlway
racism at schools
To review the
Children’s
service’s response
Services / Carol
Cammiss
Standing item
Democratic
Services / Sal
Thirlway

COMMUNITY AND CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

84

DATE OF
MEETING

ITEM

PURPOSE OF REPORT

REASON FOR
CONSIDERATION

CONTACT OFFICER

22 February
2021
(Extraordinary)

Flood Risk
Management

To receive an update regarding flood risk
management within the Borough

Work Programme

Francesca Hobson

May 2021
Elections
Update

To receive an update on preparations for the
elections scheduled for May 2021, including the
counting arrangements

Work Programme

Andrew Moulton

Work
Programme

To consider the work programme for the Committee
for 2020/21

Standing Item

Democratic Services

4

DATE OF
MEETING

ITEM

PURPOSE OF REPORT

REASON FOR
CONSIDERATION

CONTACT OFFICER

29 March 2021

Update from
Police & Fire
Services

To receive an update from the Police & Fire
services

Work Programme

Callum Wernham

Work
Programme

To consider the work programme for the Committee
for 2020/21

Standing Item

Democratic Services

85
5

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE OF
MEETING

ITEMS

Health Consultation
Report

PURPOSE OF REPORT

Challenge item

Challenge item

Update on Wokingham Update
Borough Wellbeing
Board
17 March
2021



86




Self-harm
related hospital
admissions in
15-19 year olds
CAMHS
Suicide
Prevention

Healthwatch update

REASON FOR
CONSIDERATION

RESPONSIBLE
OFFICER / CONTACT
OFFICER
Democratic Services

Update

Chairman Wokingham
Borough Wellbeing
Board

Update

Update

Public Health

Challenge item

Challenge item

Healthwatch
Wokingham Borough

Currently unscheduled topics:
 Ambulance response times
 CCG – Covid and the GP Patient Survey
 Dental Services during Covid

6

